


















 
Town of Surfside 

Town Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

June 11, 2013 
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

 
        

 

1. Opening     

A. Call to Order 
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:02 P.M. 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  
Mayor Dietch, Vice Mayor Karukin, Commissioner Olchyk, Commissioner Kligman 
and Commissioner Graubart. 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Lieutenant Rory Alberto led the Pledge of Allegiance 

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Commissioner Graubart read former Commissioner Manero’s biography and called 
for a moment of silence in her memory.  
Commissioner Olchyk spoke about the submission of supplemental agendas.   
Commissioner Kligman also spoke about the supplemental agendas and brought to 
the Manager’s attention Resolution No. 1117, which outlines the procedures for the 
Town Commission meetings and stated that the agendas should be delivered to the 
Commission at least five days prior to any regular meeting. 

E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 
Town Manager Michael P. Crotty linked Item 4B2 to Items 5F and 5G. 
Commissioner Graubart would like to pull item 9G “Pulled Consent Agenda Items” 
from the discussion items.  He would like a trial period and after a couple of months 
if they are in agreement they would be able to make it a policy.  Commissioner 
Olchyk spoke against the item and stated that if pulled items are discussed at the end 
of the meeting it would be too late and they would not get the necessary attention. 
Commissioner Graubart made a motion to move forward.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Kligman.  The motion passed 4-1 with Commissioner 
Olchyk voting in opposition. 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to add Item 9N “Miriam Maer” to the 
Discussion items.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Graubart and 
all voted in favor. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion for item 5B “FPL Undergrounding Cost 
Estimate – Second Update” to be heard at 7:15pm time certain item.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Graubart and all voted in favor. 

F. Community Notes – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Mayor Dietch announced the upcoming community events. 

Page 1



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

2 
  

 

Commissioner Graubart stated that he had the pleasure and the honor of going to 
Miami Beach Senior High School and award the Town of Surfside Exemplary Award 
to a Bay Harbor Island graduate Lawrence “Larry” Frishberg. 

G. Outstanding Student Award to Simone D’Antuono – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Mayor Dietch presented the Outstanding Student Award to Simone D’Antuono. 
 
*Item 9L was discussed after. 

 
2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings (None) 

 
3.  Consent Agenda (Set for approximately 7:30 p.m.) 

Commissioner Graubart pulled item 3J, page 102. 
Commissioner Olchyk pulled item 13, page 24; item 5, page 19 and item 50, page 40. 
Vice Mayor Karukin pulled item 37, page 36; item 55, page 41; item 3J, page 102 and 
item 3M, page 159. 
Commissioner Kligman pulled item 2, page 16; item 4, page 19; item 27, page 30; item 
40, page 37 and item 43, page 37. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to approve the consent agenda minus the pulled 
items.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Graubart and all voted in 
favor.   
 
 
A. Minutes – May 15, 2013 Regular Commission Meeting Minutes  
B. Budget to Actual Summary as of March 31, 2013 – Donald Nelson, Finance 

Director  
            *C. Town Manager’s Report (Points of Light) – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager  
  Item 2, Page 16 –  Commissioner Kligman asked Public Works Project Manager 

Randy Stokes for an update on the water and sewer project.  He responded that the 
pumps are functional but the Department of Transportation (DOT) is currently 
working on the box restoration and should be finished by the end of the week. 

  Item 4, Page 19 – Commissioner Kligman asked for an update.  Town Manager 
Michael P. Crotty responded that home based businesses is part of the Code 
Enforcement issues and will be in the Code Enforcement Workshop which will be 
scheduled during the following 90 days. 

  Item 5, Page 19 – Commissioner Olchyk asked for an update.  Public Works Project 
Manager Randy Stokes stated that the bus shelter will be shipped tomorrow.  He is 
hoping that installation will begin in the next two weeks. 

  Item 13, Page 24 – Commissioner Olchyk asked what the Town is doing regarding 
the unpaid bills of the Surfside Turtle artists.  TEDACS Director Duncan Tavares 
stated that the Town agreed to pay the artists the amounts they were not paid by 
Prince Media and the amount was approximately $2,300.  Vice Mayor Karukin made 
a motion to take no further action on this item.  Mayor Dietch seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioner Kligman and Commissioner Olchyk in 
opposition.   

Page 2



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

3 
  

 

  Item 27, Page 30 – Commissioner Kligman asked if the employees that will be 
working during the Summer Camp will be attending the Anti-Bullying Program.  
Commissioner Olchyk was under the impression that classes took place in Town 
Hall.  Town Manager Michael P. Crotty will provide a response to the Town 
Commission with the cost.  Vice Mayor Karukin asked the Town Manager to 
provide the cost for implementing the Anti-Bullying Program. 

  Item 37, Page 36 – Vice Mayor Karukin reminded the Town Commission to think of 
names to seat on the Charter Review Board.  Names are to be submitted to the Town 
Clerk. 

  Item 40, Page 37 – Commissioner Kligman deferred pulling this item as it will be 
discussed at the next meeting. 

  Item 43, Page 37 – Commissioner Kligman asked for an update.  Town Manager 
Michael P. Crotty stated that there has been conversations of the possibility of an 
intergovernmental cooperation on a recreational facility, possibly partnering with the 
City of Miami Beach on the tennis court facility.  One of the options is a possible 
skateboard facility with other recreational activities.  He will report back to the 
Commission as more information is available. 

  Item50, Page 40 – Commissioner Olchyk asked for an update.  Public Works Project 
Manager Randy stokes stated that Miami Dade Public Works Department will take 
approximately three weeks to have the sign completed.  Commissioner Olchyk 
would like to have a small sign unveiling and like this event to be posted in the 
Gazette and Town’s website. 

  Item 55, Page 41 – Vice Mayor Karukin asked for an update.  Finance Director 
Donald Nelson stated that the online bill pay is projected to be up and running for 
the next billing cycle.  

            *D. Town Attorney’s Report – Linda Miller, Interim Town Attorney  
       *E.  Projects Progress Report – Calvin, Giordano and Associates, Inc.  

F.  Committee Reports – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager (Note: Vice Mayor Karukin has 

requested that Committee minutes appear on the Consent Agenda.  The most recent approved 
minutes have been included)  

   - February 28, 2013 Pension Board Meeting Minutes 
   - March 4, 2013 Tourist Board Meeting Minutes 
   - April 1, 2013 Tourist Board Meeting Minutes 
   - April 22, 2013 DVAC meeting Minutes 
   - May 6, 2013 Tourist Board Meeting Minutes 
  
G.  Reduce Gun Violence and Illegal Gun Trafficking Resolution – Mayor Daniel 

Dietch  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) SUPPORTING EFFORTS TO 
REDUCE GUN VIOLENCE AND ILLEGAL GUN TRAFFICKING BY 
USING GOVERNMENT PURCHASING POWER TO INFLUENCE GUN 
MANUFACTURERS AND DISTRIBUTORS TO USE SALES 
PRACTICES THAT PREVENT GUNS FROM FALLING INTO 
CRIMINAL HANDS; DIRECTING THE SURFSIDE POLICE 

Page 3



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

4 
  

 

DEPARTMENT TO WORK WITH WEAPONS AND AMMUNITION 
SUPPLIERS TO LEVERAGE THIS PURCHASING POWER TO PRESS 
FOR MORE RESPONSIBLE PRACTICES IN THE GUN INDUSTRY 
BY  ENCOURAGING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF SALES AND 
MARKETING SAFEGUARDS THAT PREVENT GUNS FROM 
FALLING INTO CRIMINAL HANDS;  DIRECTING THE TOWN 
MANAGER TOGETHER WITH THE POLICE DEPARTMENT TO 
PARTNER WITH OTHER MUNICIPALITIES TO CREATE A 
COALITION IN SUPPORT OF THIS INITIATIVE; DIRECTING THE 
TOWN CLERK TO SEND A CERTIFIED COPY OF THIS 
RESOLUTION TO ALL SOUTH FLORIDA MUNICIPALITIES, THE 
FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC.,  ALL MEMBERS OF 
FLORIDA’S CONGRESSIONAL DELEGATION, AND TO THE 
OBAMA ADMINISTRATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

  Approved on consent. 
 

H. Shared School Nurse Resolution – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) SUPPORTING THE EXPANSION OF 
THE SCHOOL NURSE SYSTEM IN THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE; 
JOINING THE TOWN OF BAY HARBOR ISLANDS AND THE VILLAGE 
OF BAL HARBOUR IN FUNDING A NURSE FOR RUTH K. BROAD K-8 
CENTER, NORTH BEACH ELEMENTARY, AND TREASURE ISLAND 
ELEMENTARY; AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF $7,200 FROM 
THE GENERAL FUND; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
Approved on consent. 

 
I.  Electric Car Charging Service Contract – Duncan Tavares, TEDACS Director  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) APPROVING AN AGREEMENT 
WITH CCGI HOLDINGS, LLC (“CAR CHARGING”); PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Approved on consent. 

 
J. Awning and Sign Code Update – Shelley Eichner, AICP, Town Planner  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) APPROVING CALVIN-GIORDANO & 
ASSOCIATES, INC. (CGA) WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 73 
(UPDATING AWNINGS AND SIGN CODE, CGA PROPOSAL NO.  13-
5932) IN A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $15,000; PROVIDING 
FOR AUTHORIZATION, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Page 4



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

5 
  

 

Item pulled by Commissioner Graubart and Vice Mayor Karukin. 
Commissioner Graubart suggested that rather than paying $50,000 at this time the 
Town would look into other Towns/Cities Sign ordinances and the Town would 
not have to reinvent the wheel. 
Vice Mayor Karukin asked why this item is not covered under the CGA 
agreement.  In his opinion, it is part of the scope of work of the agreement.  He 
stated that the 1989 Comprehensive Plan has a very nice sketch on their Future 
Land Use section about what the signage should be like in a Town like Surfside.  
He would like for staff to look into that. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra spoke on the item and stated that the contract they 
currently have is to provide day to day planning/zoning services and this is a 
specific project that falls out of their scope of work.  This item has been included 
in the Town’s Budget for the last two years and is actually a budgeted item.  Staff 
has been unable to move forward due to the bulk of work involved. 
Mayor Dietch made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second from 
Vice Mayor Karukin.  The motion failed 2-3 with Commissioner Graubart, 
Commissioner Kligman and Commissioner Olchyk voting in opposition. 
 
 

 
K. Proportionate School Concurrency Agreement with Surf Club, Inc. – Linda 

Miller, Town Attorney  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) APPROVING AN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, CLPF-NBV, L.P., AS SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST TO THE 
SURF CLUB, INC., (A FLORIDA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION) AND 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, TO ADDRESS MITIGATION OF SCHOOL 
CONCURRENCY IMPACTS RELATED TO DEVELOPMENT 
PROPOSED ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9011 COLLINS AVENUE, 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATE TOWN 
OFFICIALS TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO IMPLEMENT THE 
TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT;  PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  Approved on consent. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

6 
  

 

 
L.  Proportionate School Concurrency Agreement with Chateau Ocean, LLC – 

Linda Miller, Town Attorney  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) APPROVING AN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, CLPF-NBV, L.P., AS SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST TO 
CHATEAU OCEAN, LLC, AND THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, TO 
ADDRESS MITIGATION OF SCHOOL CONCURRENCY IMPACTS 
RELATED TO DEVELOPMENT PROPOSED ON PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 9349, 9365, AND 9379 COLLINS AVENUE, SURFSIDE, 
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATE TOWN OFFICIALS 
TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS OF 
THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT;  PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

  Approved on consent. 
 
 
M.  Re-Appointment of Special Masters – Linda Miller, Town Attorney  
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE (TOWN), REAPPOINTING SPECIAL MASTERS; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  Item pulled by Vice Mayor Karukin  
  Vice Mayor Karukin asked the cost of the special master. 
  Code Compliance Director Joe Damian stated that approximately $150.00 per hour. 
   
 

Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to approve the pulled items from the consent 
agenda.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in 
favor. 

 
4. Ordinances  

(Set for approximately __N/A___ p.m.)   (Note:  Good and Welfare must begin at 8:15) 

A. Second Readings (Ordinances and Public Hearing) 

 
 
 
 

 (Set for approximately __N/A___ p.m.) (Note:  Good and Welfare must begin at 8:15) 

Page 6



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

7 
  

 

B. First Reading Ordinances 
 
1. Comprehensive Plan Text Amendments – Shelley Eichner, AICP, Town 

Planner  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE 
ELEMENT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
BY AMENDING POLICY 1.1 TO INCLUDE NUMBER OF STORIES IN 
HEIGHT LIMITATION IN ALL FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
CATEGORIES AND TO ADD PLACES OF PUBLIC ASSEMBLY USES 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH POLICY 10.6 TO THE LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL, MODERATE DENSITY RESIDENTIAL/TOURIST 
AND GENERAL RETAIL/SERVICES FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
CATEGORIES AND BY ADDING POLICY 10.6 TO PROVIDE FOR 
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS THAT ALLOW 
REASONABLE RELIEF FOR RELIGIOUS USES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR 
PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

    Town Planner Shelley Eichner presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Outside Counsel Nancy Stroud presented the item to the Town Commission as 
well. 
Andrew Tobin representing Town resident Pieter and Shirley Bakker spoke 
against the item. 
Mayor Dietch made a motion to approve for discussion purposes.  The motion 
died due to lack of second. 
 

2. Reformed Mark Wandall Traffic Safety Act – David Allen, Chief of 
Police  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 74 “TRAFFIC AND 
VEHICLES”, ARTICLE III “DANGEROUS INTERSECTION SAFETY” 
AND SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 74-72 “USE OF IMAGE 
CAPTURE TECHNOLOGIES", SECTION 74-76 “IMPLEMENTATION 
OF GENERAL LAW”, AND SECTION 74-77 “ISSUANCE OF NOTICE; 
REVIEW OF RECORDED IMAGES” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES  IMPLEMENTING CHAPTER 2013-__, LAWS 
OF FLORIDA;  PROVIDING FOR LOCAL HEARING OFFICERS 
CONSISTENT WITH GENERAL LAW; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION 

Page 7



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

8 
  

 

IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
Lieutenant Richard Williams presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Mayor Dietch made a motion to adopt ordinance on first reading.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Kligman.  The motion carried 5-0.  
 

   5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 
(Set for approximately __8:30_ p.m.)  (Note: Depends upon length of Good and 
Welfare) 

 
 

A. Approval and Award of Contract to Lynx Construction for 95th Street 
Improvements from Collins Avenue to the Beach – Joseph Kroll, Public Works 
Director  

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AWARDING A BID TO LYNX CONSTRUCTION 
LLC FOR 95TH STREET END IMPROVEMENTS SUBJECT TO 
CERTAIN CONDITIONS; AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR 
THE PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $60,000.00 FROM THE 
STORMWATER FUND RESERVES AND $36,466.84 FROM THE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND; PROVIDING FOR AWARD, 
APPROVAL, AND AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Public Works Director Joseph Kroll presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Commissioner Graubart made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Olchyk and all 
 

B. FPL Underground Cost Estimate – Second Update – Michael P. Crotty, Town 
Manager  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION AND 
EXPENDITURE OF $10,000.00 FROM THE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
ACCOUNT NO. 301-4400-541-3125 FOR FY 2012/2013 TO FLORIDA 
POWER & LIGHT FOR A REVISED UNDERGROUNDING BINDING 
COST ESTIMATE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Town Manager Michael P. Crotty presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Finance Director Donald Nelson presented the item to the Town Commission 
from the finance perspective. 
Ann Finley stated that she now understands the financial issues with this project 
but that she thinks that the Town is worth the cost. 

Page 8



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

9 
  

 

Ken Arnold spoke about the project and stated that the Town Commission might 
want to take the project to the Community and see if they think that this project is 
worth the new cost. 
Terry Cohen asked why the cost of the project went from $2 million to $9 million. 
Commissioner Graubart would like to see this item be voted on as a referendum.  
Commissioner Olchyk expressed her dislike for the cost of the project. 
Vice Mayor Karukin stated that he is not in support of the project. 
Commissioner Kligman stated that she is in support of the staff going back and 
doing our due diligence and exploring if there is any more information that will 
help them make a better decision. 
After some discussion, input and comments from the Town Commission, Mayor 
Dietch made a motion to defer the item thirty days and direct the Manager to set 
up a meeting with HPF and get a line by line, number by number review and a 
report back to the Town Commission during the July 2013 Town Commission 
meeting.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman.  The 
motion died 2-3 with Commissioner Graubart, Commissioner Olchyk and Vice 
Mayor Karukin voting in opposition. 
 

C. Engagement of Marcum, LLP – Donald Nelson, Finance Director  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING THE RENEWAL OF THE 
ENGAGEMENT LETTER WITH MARCUM LLP FOR AUDITING 
SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH  THE AUDITOR SELECTION 
COMMITTEE PROCESS; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL; PROVIDING 
FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.   
Finance Director Donal Nelson presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Commissioner Graubart made a motion to approve a three year contract with a 
two year reopener.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman.  
The motion carried 4-1 with Mayor Dietch voting in opposition. 
 

D. Coastal Corridor Interlocal Agreement – Mayor Daniel Dietch  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (TOWN), CREATING A PROPERTY ASSESSED 
CLEAN ENERGY PROGRAM AND JOINING THE TOWN OF BAY 
HARBOR ISLANDS AND THE VILLAGE OF BISCAYNE PARK IN 
CREATING THE CLEAN ENERGY COASTAL CORRIDOR PROGRAM 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 163.08, FLORIDA STATUTES; 
ADOPTING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 163.01, FLORIDA STATUTES RELATING TO THE 

Page 9



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

10 
  

 

CORRIDOR; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Mayor Dietch presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Commissioner Graubart made a motion to accept.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor. 
 

E. FY 12/13 Proposed Mid-Year Budget Amendment Resolution – Donald 
Nelson, Finance Director  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS 
RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED FOR FISCAL YEAR OCTOBER 1, 2012 TO 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013; FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE 
ANNUAL BUDGET IN THE  GENERAL FUND, CAPITAL PROJECT 
FUND, RESORT TAX FUND, TRANSPORTATION FUND, WATER & 
SEWER FUND, STORMWATER FUND, PARKING FUND, AND SOLID 
WASTE FUND; AND OTHER ADJUSTMENTS REQUIRED TO THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 BUDGET; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Finance Director Donald Nelson presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Graubart and all voted in favor. 

 

F. Second Amendment to American Traffic Solutions, Inc. Agreement – David 
Allen, Chief of Police  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE   TOWN TO ENTER INTO 
A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN 
AMERICAN TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS, INC., AND THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT “A” 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO 
DO ALL THINGS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS OF THE 
CONTRACT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Mayor Dietch made a motion to defer the item and directed staff to come back 
with more information on the cost.  The motion received a second from 
Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor. 
 

 

 

Page 10



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

11 
  

 

 

G. Reformed Mark Wandall Traffic Safety Act Code Enforcement 
Implementation – David Allen, Chief of Police  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”), DESIGNATING THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE’S CODE ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL MASTERS AND CODE 
COMPLIANCE OFFICER(S) TO SERVE AS LOCAL HEARING 
OFFICERS PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 2013-__, LAWS OF FLORIDA; 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN CLERK TO 
UTILIZE CODE ENFORCEMENT STAFF TO IMPLEMENT CHAPTER 
2013-__, LAWS OF FLORIDA; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mayor Dietch made a motion to defer the item.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor. 

 

H. Oklahoma Relief Resolution – Commissioner Joe Graubart  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE; APPROVING A 
DONATION OF $250.00 TOWARDS THE OKLAHOMA TORNADO 
RELIEF PAID TO THE AMERICAN RED CROSS DISASTER RELIEF, 
TO BE FUNDED FROM THE GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT NO. 001-
1000-511-5290; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZATION; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Commissioner Graubart made motion to approve.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Kligman.  The motion passed 4-1 with Commissioner Olchyk 
voting in opposition. 

     
      6.  Good and Welfare (Set for approximately 8:15 p.m.)   

Manuel Lecour spoke about the Town’s tennis courts and how the residents would like to 
see them improved.  Commissioner Graubart stated that maybe the Town should review 
this issue during the budget season to do something regarding the tennis courts. 
Commissioner Olchyk stated that this project is currently being discussed at the Parks 
and Recreation Committee. 
Terry Cohen spoke about the situation that she currently has with her two (2) neighbors.  
Town Manager Michael P. Crotty gave the Town Commission a brief update on the case 
and informed Ms. Cohen that he will be in contact with her. 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

12 
  

 

 
7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 

Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
 All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town 
 Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may 
 request, during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed from  
the consent agenda and discussed separately. 
 

8. Unfinished Business and New Business 
 
 

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
 

        A.  Beach Erosion – Commissioner Michelle Kligman  
 Item deferred by Commissioner Kligman. 
        B.  Construction Worker Parking Program – Commissioner Joe Graubart  
 Commissioner Graubart would like the Police Department to work together with St. 

Joseph to see if there is a possibility that the construction workers can use that lot to 
park.   

C.  Town Attorney Evaluation – Sandra Novoa, Town Clerk  
 Town Clerk Sandra Novoa presented the item to the Town Commission. 
 After some discussion a consensus was reached that each member of the Town 

Commission will complete the evaluation, email it to the Town Clerk.   
 Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to appoint Commissioner Kligman to compile all 

the evaluations and bring back a report during the July 16, 2013 Regular Town 
Commission meeting.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner Graubart absent 
from the dais. 

 Town Clerk Sandra Novoa will compile the evaluations and forward them to 
Commissioner Kligman. 

D.  Harding Avenue to Abbott Parking Lot Paseo (Passageway) at 9536/9538/9540 
Harding Avenue – Duncan Tavares, TEDACS Director  

 Duncan Tavares, TEDACS Director presented the item to the Town Commission. 
 He explained that this item has been presented to DVAC and to the Planning and Zoning 

Board.  That at this point the staff would like direction from the Town Commission 
moving forward.   

 Commissioner Graubart made a motion not to approve the project.  The motion received 
a second from Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor. 

E.  Code Compliance Priorities Recommendations and Sight Triangle Resolution – Joe 
Damien, Code Compliance Director  

 Code Enforcement Director Joe Damian presented the Town Commission with a 
Priorities checklist for them to fill out and submit to the Town Clerk to have a better 
idea of each of their priorities.  Furthermore this item will be discussed during the 
Hedges and Sight Triangle Workshop that should be schedule soon. 

 

Page 12



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

13 
  

 

 Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to extend the meeting three hours.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Olchyk.  The motion passed 4-1 with 
Commissioner Graubart voting in opposition. 

F.  Calendar for FY 13/14 Budget Process – Donald Nelson, Finance Director  
 The Town Commission acknowledged receipt of the Budget Preparation Calendar and 

after some discussion meetings were agreed to.  Meetings will be scheduled and 
advertised. 

G.  Pulled Consent Agenda Items – Mayor Daniel Dietch  
 Item was discussed under item 1E - Agenda and Order of Business.  

 H.  Life Guard Stations – Commissioner Joe Graubart  
  Commissioner Graubart would like to for the Town Manager to look into reaching to 

some of the Architectural Schools and see if they will be interesting in participating.   
  Town Manager Michael P. Crotty stated that with some of the development agreements, 

there are different methods of addressing the lifeguard’s stations.  The Surf Club would 
have to submit a plan to the Town for approval.  

 I.  Street Dead End Safety – Commissioner Joe Graubart  
    Commissioner Graubart expressed his concerns about kids playing on street dead end 

and jumping in the canal and then they have problems getting out.  The Town 
Commission directed staff to keep the street dead ends clean and to put appropriate 
signage, reaching out to the schools and increase patrol.  

 J.  Quasi-Judicial Hearings/Decisions/Votes – Commissioner Joe Graubart  
  Commissioner Graubart spoke about the choice of the Commission to vote in favor or 

against a Quasi-Judicial Hearing. 
 K.  Police Presence and Safety – Commissioner Michelle Kligman  
  Commissioner Kligman expressed that some residents have reached out to her regarding 

police presence.  She stated that she has had discussion with some members of the 
Police Department and in her opinion the residents would like to see more of a 
Neighborhood Resource Officer with Community Policing.   She stated that when she 
thinks about community policing she thinks of two officers, Sergeant Jay Matelis and 
Dianna Hernandez. 

  Commissioner Olchyk stated that they should also be more police presence on the beach. 
  Vice Mayor Karukin thanked the Police Department and rather see police patrolling on 

the streets than on the beach. 
  Commissioner Kligman asked the Town Manager to research this item further. 
 L.  Harding Avenue Streetscape Design – Duncan Tavares, TEDACS Director  
  Duncan Tavares, TEDACS Director presented the item to the Town Commission. 
  Eddie Lamas from C3TS presented the Town Commission with a PowerPoint 

presentation. 
  Ann Finley spoke in favor of the item. 
  Louis Cohen spoke in favor of the project. 

   Ms. Packer spoke in favor of the item. 
   Ken Arnold spoke in favor of the project. 
   Terry Cohen spoke in favor of beatifying the Downtown area. 
   Meredith Beatie spoke in favor of the item. 

 Commissioner Graubart stated that he was concern about the look of the Town after you    
drive those two blocks of downtown. 

Page 13



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 11, 2013 
 
  

14 
  

 

 Commissioner Olchyk stated that she was very excited about the project but was      
concerned about the current trees and would like to make sure that there is a plan to 
relocate them. 

 A representative of Lukes Landscape stated that there is a tree disposition plan to keep 
all the trees within the Town and safely relocating them. 

 Mayor Dietch asked Commissioner Olchyk that if there is any specific location where 
she would like to see trees planted to please let the Town Manager know. 

  Vice Mayor Karukin spoke about the trash and/recycle receptacles and the availability 
for cigarette disposals as well.  He asked if the trees will affect the visibility of the 
businesses signs and the response was negative. 

  Commissioner Kligman asked questions to Public Works Director Joseph Kroll 
regarding the type of trees that the Town will be using.   Mr. Kroll stated that in his 
experience this types of trees have survived well and there is minimum maintenance.  
Commissioner Kligman stated that she was very supportive of the project and thanked 
the Town Manager and the Staff for a job well done. 

  After some more discussion Commissioner Kligman made a motion to move forward.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 

N.   Payment to Former Interim Town Attorney Miriam Maer – Commissioner Marta 
Olchyk (ADDED ITEM) 

  Commissioner Graubart made a motion to make payment of the outstanding balance that 
the Town owes Ms. Maer.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Olchyk.  
The motion passed 4-1 with Mayor Dietch voting in opposition. 

 
      10. Adjournment  

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned 
at 12:13 a.m.   

 
 
 
 
 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2013 

 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, CMC 
Town Clerk 

 

Page 14



Page 15

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3B



Page 16



Page 17



I.  COMMUNITY PROGRAMS/INITIATIVES/ENHANCEMENTS 
 
1.  Dog Park: Mayor Daniel Dietch  
 
Current Status:  The dog park is under construction and close to completion.  Luke’s Landscaping is 
performing the work and the lot has been cleaned; fences installed around the dog park and pump 
station; and sod laid.  Still to be completed is installation of landscaping plants and signage.  
Anticipated completion is the week of July 15, 2013.  Staff will coordinate an appropriate dedication 
ceremony to celebrate this new facility.  A preliminary staff recommendation on the ceremony will be 
prepared by July 15, 2013. [Peter Kageryama, author of “For the Love of Cities”, was the keynote 
speaker for the opening session of the Florida City/County Management Association’s annual meeting 
in May, 2013.  He began his presentation by stating that “dog parks humanize a community”.  Based 
on my experiences with planning, developing and operating a dog park, his words ring true]. 
 
 
2. Isaac Bashevis Singer Boulevard: Commissioner Marta Olchyk 
 
Current Status:  On April 9, 2013 the Town Commission  approved and passed Resolution No. 13-
2049 to correct the street sign named “Isaac Singer Boulevard” to “Isaac Bashevis Singer Boulevard” 
to properly honor him on both  ends of 95th Street. The Miami-Dade County Commission approved the 
change to “Isaac Bashevis Singer Boulevard” (Resolution No. R-406-13) at the June 4, 2013 Board of 
County Commissioners meeting.  The Miami-Dade County Acting Chief of Traffic Signal and Signs 
Division advised that the signs are currently in production and should be completed mid-July, 2103 
and installed following receipt.  Staff will coordinate a recognition event with Commissioner  
Olchyk.  In planning the event, it would be helpful to identify relatives, friends, literary associates and 
Surfside residents who knew Isaac Bashevis Singer so that an appropriate recognition ceremony could 
be planned to again celebrate this distinguished individual who called Surfside home. 
 
 
3.  Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Program:  Mayor Daniel Dietch 
  
Current Status:  This program allows existing residential and commercial buildings to be 
retrofitted for energy efficiency with the cost funded from a loan pool authorized by the State of 
Florida and funded by Barclay’s Capital. The low interest loans are repaid from a long term 
assessment on the property.  There are no guarantees provided by the Town of Surfside.  A 

Page 18

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3C



presentation was made by Chad Friedman and Steve Alexander regarding the program at the 
October 9, 2012 Town Commission meeting.  Bay Harbor Islands agreed to join the program.   
 
The Commission adopted a resolution at its June 11, 2013 meeting creating a Property Assessed 
Clean Energy Program and joined with Bay Harbor and Village of Biscayne Park in creating the 
Clean Energy Coastal Coordination Program.  Joseph Spector, Clean Energy Green Coordinator, 
attended the June 11, 2013 meeting and informed the Commission that his organization will be 
responsible for coordinating and implementing the program. The Building Official has been 
assigned as the liaison to the PACE program. The Town will also assist in the public 
information/outreach process by making available the website, newsletter, utility billings, etc.  
Item completed. 
 
 
4.  Turtle Sculptures - Art in Public Places 

Current Status: The sculptures will remain in place until June, 2014.  The Tourist Board’s 
decision on what to do with the sculptures at the end of the exhibit will be brought to Town 
Commission by end of year 2013. Item completed. 
 
 
5.  Electric Car Charging Station: Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 
Current Status:  The Town Commission authorized entering into an agreement with the company 
Car Charging for the installation and operation of an electric car charging station in the parking 
lot of Town Hall at the June 11, 2013 meeting. The Parking Division of the Police Department is  
working with the company on the installation of the station. Once arrangements are made with 
FPL to install a separate meter at the station's location, an expense to be incurred 
by Car Charging, the station will be installed.   
 
 
6.  Bullying Program: Commissioner Michelle Kligman 
 
Current Status: The bullying program was held on January 16, 2013 in the Community Center. The 
event consisted of an informative session that included an expert panel in the control of bullying with 
a question and answer session and a showing of the movie Bully. The event was a great success with 
approximately 100 people in attendance. Commissioner Kligman has proposed a robust program that 
incorporates surrounding communities and the School Board to further this program.  A resolution 
defining this effort was approved by the Town Commission during the February 12, 2013 Commission 
meeting. The resolution along with an outline for implementing the program was introduced to the 
Parks and Recreation Committee during their March 18, 2013 meeting. The Parks and Recreation 
Committee requested to possibly have the incoming summer camp staff trained in an Anti-Bullying 
program. Staff has set up with Locomotion Theatre Inc. to present a one and a half hour training 
course in Anti-Bully to include: 

Page 19



 
1. Methods for a counselor to deal with a child who is a bully 
2. Methods for a counselor to deal with a child who is being bullied 
3. The negative effects of bullying   
 
Summer camp staff received the bully training during the summer camp in-service training on June 8, 
2013.  Staff is currently working with the same agency to provide a Fall workshop on anti-bullying for 
all part time and full time Parks and Recreation staff. Staff will also research the possibility of holding 
a youth anti-bully program. This will be an ongoing process and updates will be provided each month 
in the Points of Light.  
 
 
7.  Mt. Sinai Bus Route: Commissioner Michelle Kligman 
 
Current Status: Following the Town Manager and TEDACS Director meeting with the Jewish 
Community Services (JCS) team on May 30, 2013 regarding transportation options and related costs, 
JCS staff prepared a bus proposal. This information will be presented to the Town Commission in the 
FY 13/14 budget process.  A subsequent meeting on June 24, 2013 explored further partnership 
options to mutually benefit Town residents and JCS clients. A Program Modification addressing 
transportation to Mount Sinai in conjunction with JCS has been included in the proposed FY 13/14 
budget.  In the interim, JCS conducted outreach meetings with all Police Department shifts to inform 
them of their services available to seniors.  Being aware of the benefits of the Surf-Bal-Bay Program, 
police officers can pass on information to residents/seniors that they interact with during their daily 
community involvement/activities.   The Town will continue to inform Surfside residents of the 
program through the monthly Gazette. 
 
 
8. Scholarship Program: Commissioner Marta Olchyk 
 
Current Status: Commissioner Olchyk volunteered to spearhead the selection of the scholarship 
program committee and select two scholarship award winners to the Parks and Recreation Committee 
during the February 11, 2013 meeting. The Parks and Recreation Committee accepted the 
responsibility of reviewing and determining two overall winners of $1,000 dollars each. The number 
of scholarships and the amount was approved by the Town Commission during the February 12, 2013 
Town Commission Meeting.  The Parks and Recreation Committee requested that the program be 
advertised by the Town on the website, Gazette and at all Town facilities and sources. The Parks and 
Recreation Committee on April 29, 2013 reviewed the one and only application submitted by the 
deadline. The applicant met all the requirements requested in the application process and the 
Committee voted to award Gabriel Coto the $1,000 Higher Education Scholarship. Gabriel will be 
awarded the check and recognized at the July, 2013 Commission meeting.  At the June 27, 2013 FY 
13/14 budget workshop, Commissioner Olchyk reported to the Commission the Parks and Recreation 
Board’s recommendation to allocate $1000 (from unspent scholarship funds) in the FY 13/14 budget 
for a summer camp scholarship for summer 2014.  Funds have been included in the proposed budget. 

Page 20



 
9.  Bicycles on Beach Walking Path 
 
Current Status: The Town does not allow bicycles on the hard pack. Seventeen new uniform signs 
were installed on the entrances from the hard pack to the beach walking path in December 2012. The 
signs prohibit certain activities including bicycles on the walking path. Staff also installed two “no 
bicycles” signs on the north and south entrances to the walkway in May 2013. However, the Town 
does not have an ordinance in place to enforce this ban and violators of the rule can only be warned. If 
the Town Commission authorizes a new ordinance, enforcement would be problematic because 
personnel are not assigned full time to the walkway to monitor bicycles. Current staffing with the 
Police Department and the Code Compliance Department will not allow full time coverage and both 
Departments have higher priorities.  Item completed. 
 
 
10.  Joint Park with City of Miami Beach 
 
Current Status: Initial contact was made with Miami Beach officials on May 31, 2013 regarding a joint 
skate park project located south of the Tennis Center and discussions have begun with the Town’s 
Parks and Recreation Committee.  Also, a coalition of tennis advocates is beginning to form in the 
same manner as the Dog Park and Community Garden.  A meeting with Miami Beach officials is 
scheduled for July 11, 2013.  A follow-up report will be provided to the Commission. 
 
 
11.  MAST Academy – Miami-Dade County Public Schools Maritime and Science Technology 
Academy (FIU Biscayne Bay Campus) 
 
Current Status:  Miami-Dade County Public School District is currently in the process of finalizing the 
startup of a District operated secondary program in environmental sciences at the FIU Biscayne Bay 
Campus (3000 NE 151st Street, North Miami) for School Year 13/14. 
 
Mayor Daniel Dietch and the Town Manager received a briefing on June 18, 2013 from County 
School District officials on the start-up of the Environmental Science Program and longer range plans 
to fund and permanently establish a facility.  Commissioner Michelle Kligman has also received a 
briefing from the Superintendent’s Office on the proposal. 
 
In a number of locations through the County, municipalities partner with the School District to invest 
in educational opportunities for its residents particularly as it relates to MAST academies.  Over the 
next couple of months, this option will be explored with surrounding municipalities to determine level 
of interest in further pursuing a partnership with Miami-Dade School District to ensure capacity for 
Surfside students for the environmental science program at FIU Biscayne Campus. 
 
  

Page 21



 
12.  Bus Shelters: Commissioner Marta Olchyk 
 
Current Status: The Town Commission approved the purchase of three additional shelters at a 
cost of $75,000 which has been reduced to $64,237 after negotiations. The shelters were ordered 
on March 27, 2013.  Once received the contractors are expected to install the shelters in the 
designated locations. There was an issue regarding installation of bus shelters along Collins 
Avenue relating to the available area of the FDOT right-of-way.  The issues regarding the area of 
FDOT right-of-way and FDOT regulations have been resolved due to field adjustment and the 
shelters are now ADA compliant. Pre-construction of the bus shelter pads have been completed.  
The bus shelters delivery date has been confirmed and were shipped to the contractor on July 2, 
2013.  The contractor will receive them by July 9, 2013 with installation anticipated to be 
completed by July 15, 2013. 
 
 
13.  Town-wide Traffic Study Public Outreach 
 
Current Status:  The proposal for the outreach/education process on the Town-wide Traffic Study was 
presented to the Commission at the May 15, 2013 meeting.  The first outreach meeting was held June 
25, 2013 in the Commission Chambers.  Approximately 10 residents attended.  An additional outreach 
effort will be scheduled with a different approach in order to secure greater public participation and 
input. 
 
 
II.  DOWNTOWN BUSINESS DISTRICT AND TOURISM 
 
1.  Harding Avenue Streetscape 
 
Current Status:  On June 11, 2013, the Commission approved the Harding Avenue Streetscape Plan in 
the amount of $839,770.  The Plan provides for the installation of sixty-nine lighted Medjool palms 
(existing palms to be relocated to other locations in the Town).  Other features of the Plan include the 
establishment of eight pocket parks complemented by a $65,000 landscaping budget.  The pocket 
parks will have benches and new trash/recycling cans included. 
 
The architects and Staff met with FDOT District Secretary Gus Pego on July 3, 2013 to review plans 
and discuss FDOT permitting requirements.  An FDOT permit should be received during August, 
2013 and the project completed during Fall, 2013. 
 
 
  

Page 22



2.  Abbott and 94th Street Lot Improvements 
(Action Item:  July 16, 2013) 
 
Current Status:  In December, 2010, Lynx Construction was awarded a contract for design build 
services for 222 95th Street (Post Office Lot) for design and construction of the new parking lot.  At 
the June 14, 2011 meeting, the Town Commission approved FTE Engineering Inc. to do a Parking Lot 
Improvement Study for all six (6) municipal parking lots.  The purpose of this study was to analyze 
each of the Town’s parking lots, recommend improvements, prioritize the recommendations and 
provide an engineering estimate of what the improvements would cost. 
 
A bid proposal was also received under the Lynx contract to renovate the Abbott, 95th Street (Shul) 
94th Street, Town Hall (93rd Street) and Town Hall (Collins) lots totaling $220,000 which was below 
the $450,000 estimated figure.  Renovation was completed on the two Town Hall lots and the 95th 
Street (Shul) lot for $95,000 and the cost of landscaping added $97,000.  The remaining lot 
improvements were delayed pending the Parking Structure Feasibility Study (information from the 
August, 2012 Points of Light). 
 
At the May 15, 2013 Commission meeting, maintenance improvements were authorized.  Landscaping 
improvements will be discussed at the July, 2013 Commission meeting in order for Staff to more fully 
present the issue prior to undertaking the improvements. 
 
A PowerPoint presentation was prepared for the June 24, 2013 DVAC meeting regarding the addition 
of landscaping improvements for the Abbott and 94th Street lots.  A landscaping plan with reduced 
costs will be presented.  The landscape material will be of the variety that can be transplanted should 
one or both of these sites ultimately be the site of a parking structure. 
 
 
3.  Downtown Vision Project: Commissioner Michelle Kligman 

 
Current Status: The Downtown Vision Advisory Committee (DVAC) met on June 24, 2013 to 
discuss the following: 
- Downtown Streetscape Master Plan  
- Harding Avenue Paseo 
- Sign Code 
- BID Process   
- Code Compliance 
- Abbott & 94th Street Parking Lot Improvements 
- Parking Structure Study Education/Outreach 

 
Meeting minutes will be provided as part of the Town Commission Agenda for the November 
2013 meeting as the Committee is now on summer hiatus until October 28, 2013. 
  

Page 23



 
4.  Sidewalk Ordinance Implementation 
 
Current Status:  The amended sidewalk lease agreement with FDOT is in final review and will be 
presented to the Town Commission meeting at either the August or September, 2013 Commission 
meeting. The ordinance will be rolled out as part of the Town’s business licensing process in the Fall 
to coincide and complement the Harding Avenue Business District Streetscape Greenway. 
 
 
5.  Starbucks 
 
Current Status:  Starbucks is coming to the Condotti Men’s Clothing Store location.  It was approved 
by the Planning and Zoning Board during their January 31, 2013 meeting.  Thank you to Sergio 
Castaneda for his long service to Surfside and welcome to our first national tenant in a very long time.  
The Starbucks plans were submitted for review on April 17, 2013. Mechanical, electrical, and 
plumbing disciplines have been approved. Structural and building sections had commentary that 
required a rework of the plans. The information was forwarded to the project representative. The 
comments are currently being addressed by the design team.  A determination has been made that the 
improvements to the building do not constitute substantial improvement per FEMA guidelines. 
Starbucks is expected to open by September 30, 2013. 
 
 
6.  Mid-Block Access to Abbott Lot 
 
Current Status: This item was discussed at the May 29, 2013 DVAC and May 30, 2013 Planning and 
Zoning meetings.  This item was discussed at the June 11, 2013 Town Commission meeting. The 
Town Commission directed to not proceed with negotiations for this paseo due to the costs involved. 
Item completed. 
 
 
7. Parking Structure Feasibility Study 
 
Current Status: The completed study was issued to the DVAC Parking Subcommittee (which 
includes members appointed by the Town Commission and the Town Manager) on March 
8, 2013 for the March 20, 2013 meeting. Rich and Associates and C3TS/Stantec presented to the 
committee and public in attendance and the meeting was broadcast over Channel 77.  The 
committee unanimously voted in favor of moving the study on to the Planning and Zoning Board 
(April 3, 2013) and Town Commission (April 9, 2013).  
 
At the April 9, 2013 meeting, the Commission acknowledged receipt of the March, 2013 Parking 
Structure Feasibility Study.  The Commission tasked Staff to develop a public outreach and 
educational process to move the Study forward in order to ensure all stakeholders have been 
informed and involved prior to the Commission proceeding with its action on the Study.   

Page 24



 
Staff began the outreach/education process on the Parking Structure Feasibility Study.  At the 
May, 2013 DVAC meeting, the committee members were asked to be prepared to share their 
ideas/suggestions on the community outreach/vision process.  At the June 24, 2013 DVAC 
meeting, the committee members provided ideas/suggestions on the community outreach/vision 
process. The item was also discussed at the two BID Property Owners/Business Operators 
meetings held on June 26, 2013. Staff will continue to work on formulating the requested 
outreach strategy and report back to the Commission. 
 
 
8.  Five Year Tourism Strategic Plan 
 
Current Status:   The Tourist Board received a comprehensive update from the consultants at the 
June 3, 2013 meeting and July 1, 2013 meetings. A request for a joint meeting with the Town 
Commission and Tourist Board is requested for August 5, 2013 at the regularly scheduled 
monthly Tourist Board meeting.  The Commission will be asked to confirm this date at the July, 
2013 Commission meeting. 
 
 
 
III.  INFRASTRUCTURE AND UTILITIES 
 
1.  95th Street End Project 
 
Current Status:  Due to the need to complete the street end project contemporaneously with the 9501 
building construction which began construction in mid-May 2012, the Administration has moved 
forward with the project for one block only using the architectural/engineering firm Bermello Ajamil 
(BMA) (from the approved rotation).  The Town Commission confirmed this on July 17, 2012 and 
selected the design “look” on August 15, 2012.  The thematic design will be usable for all three blocks 
of 95th Street should the Town Commission determine to expand the project in the future.  Bermello 
Ajamil has completed the design and submitted the bid package which was advertised April 2, 2013 in 
the Daily Business Review.  Bids were opened on April 19, 2013 and five bids were received.  The 
Commission awarded the bid to Lynx Construction on June 11, 2013 for the 95th Street Improvements 
Collins Avenue east to the bulkhead.  The FDEP permit has been received and construction is 
scheduled to start the first week in August, 2013.  Project duration is approximately 140 days.  A pre-
construction conference was held June 27, 2013 to discuss the project.  In attendance: Lynx 
Construction, Spiaggia Ocean Condo, 95th on the Ocean, Luke’s Landscaping, Surfside Police, and 
Public Works.  Items discussed included coordination of the project; input/concerns from abutting 
property representatives; procedures on notifications to residents; parking and start date.  A second 
pre-construction meeting is set for the July 10, 2013 with BMA (engineering firm), FDEP and Lynx 
Construction.   
 
 

Page 25



2.  FPL/AT&T/Cable Undergrounding Project:  Commissioner Michelle Kligman 
 
Current Status:  The Town Commission allocated $300,000 in the water/sewer/storm drainage 
project to provide mid-block crossover conduit so that a future undergrounding project would not 
have to break the pavement.  FPL has completed the study of the cost of undergrounding Town-
wide and the Town Commission authorized retaining bond counsel and financial advisor to assist 
with the project during the November 13, 2012 Town Commission meeting.  During the 
December, 2012 Town Commission meeting, Staff was authorized to schedule five televised 
public meetings that have been held and a FAQ’s was mailed to all addresses in the Town.  At 
the direction of the Town Commission, the cost estimate validation process has been contracted 
to HPF and Associates for $2750 and preliminary cost estimates have been received and are 
under review.  This firm has done similar work for Golden Beach, Miami Beach Palm/Hibiscus 
and Sunset Islands underground projects.  The April, 2013 Commission agenda included a 
seventh status report on the project which answered the many questions raised by the Town 
Commission during the March 12, 2013 meeting when authorization to continue developing the 
project was granted.   
 
Correspondence was received from John Butler, FPL Assistant General Counsel – Regulatory 
dated April 26, 2013.  This correspondence addressed the Town’s request to extend the binding 
cost estimates (BCE) which originally was due to expire on March 26, 2013 but had been 
extended by FPL to April 26, 2013.  FPL states that it cannot extend the existing BCE but it is 
willing “to refresh it with updated information on material and labor costs, in lieu of preparing a 
new BCE”.  A new BCE would cost approximately $60,000.  The cost of refreshing the existing 
BCE would be $10,000.  A resolution appeared on the May, 2013 Commission agenda 
authorizing the $10,000 expenditure, however it was delayed pending review of the HPF and 
Associates estimate of all costs of the undergrounding including the cost of undergrounding 
other utilities (AT&T and Atlantic Broadband);  restoration costs; street lights; cost of property 
conversion/hook-ups; etc.  If this expenditure is authorized, the Town would have a 180 day 
window from April 26, 2013 to address/resolve the remaining issues to proceed with 
undergrounding through the use of the MGRUF Tariff.    
 
A staff report dated June 3, 2013 compared the independent (HPF and Associates) analysis/cost 
estimate ($14M) with the previous in-house cost estimates ($8.5M prepared in January, 
2013).   When the independent cost estimate was requested, the Town asked for specific 
estimates for the undergrounding of AT&T and ABB as the Town’s estimates were just that – 
rough estimates.  The substantial portion of the increase of the overall project cost was due to 
AT&T/ABB undergrounding.  Staff recommended to the Commission that, at this time, not to 
proceed with the project.  A copy of the June 3, 2013 report is available under Town News on 
the Town website. 
 
At the June, 2013 Commission meeting, Finance Director Donald Nelson and Town Manager 
Michael Crotty recommended not to proceed due to the increased cost and financial 
ramifications of proceeding at this time.  The project would have been funded through the use 

Page 26



of  the MGRUF Tariff (approximate 8% increase in residential electric rates for a 20 year period) 
plus Town financing resulting in up to $800,000 in annual debt service payments for the same 20 
year period.  The Town’s current financial condition is strong—over $5M General Fund reserves 
and the Town’s Enterprise Funds, especially the water and sewer, are robust. Equally impressive 
is the financial strength of the Town’s pension plan which has weathered the crisis which caused 
chaos for local governments across the nation.  Town Commission and Staff crafted a solid 
financial strategy that enabled the Town to rebound and deal successfully with the negative 
impacts of the downturn in the economy (2008-2010) and the bursting of the real estate 
bubble.  The Town is several years away from realizing significant revenue growth as a result of 
the approved development projects along Collins Avenue.  If the undergrounding project remains 
a priority, the project could be funded through the use of new/additional revenue generated as a 
result of these projects thus possibly eliminating or reducing the need to consider the 8% 
increase in monthly residential electrical rates through the MGRUF Tariff.  Equally important, 
by having a new, dedicated revenue source as a result of ongoing development, the project could 
proceed on a more secure financial footing thus positioning the Town to effectively deal with a 
financial challenge similar to those local governments experienced over the last decade. 
 
 
3.  FDOT Surfside Repaving 
 
Current Status:  The Collins/Harding Avenue repaving project has been completed by 
FDOT.  This leaves the Kane Concourse (96th Street) from the Surfside Town limits to Collins 
Avenue and Collins Avenue in Bal Harbour from 97th Street to the Haulover bridge projects to 
be completed. The stamped asphalt crosswalks on Harding and Collins Avenues were finished in 
December, 2012. Staff authorized an additional stamped asphalt crosswalk for the 93rd 
Street/Harding Avenue intersection to tie together the pedestrian path from the single family 
neighborhood to the Community Center at a cost of $14,000.  This cost was expected to be 
covered in the final change order for the water/sewer/storm drainage project, but it will not be 
known if funds are available to cover the cost until final close-out costs are determined.  
 
 
4.  North Force Main/Building Better Communities Bond Program 
 
Current Status:  There is both progress and pushback on this effort to obtain funding for this 
critically important second sewage disposal alternative for Surfside, Bal Harbour and Bay 
Harbor Islands.  Miami-Dade County WASD has retained the firm of Hazen and Sawyer to study 
the situation at the North Dade Regional Plant and the 163rd Street force main.  This is 
recognition that something needs to be done that will resolve the issue which we keep top of 
their minds.  The negatives are that specific projects which would facilitate acceptance of our 
sewage are not listed in the draft settlement agreement with EPA and FDEP.  Surfside was 
represented in a community meeting held by WASD September 27, 2012 and our concerns were 
placed on the record. Roger Carlton, Donald Nelson and Mayor Daniel Dietch also attended a 
meeting held at WASD on October 25, 2012 in which the draft settlement agreement was further 

Page 27



discussed.  A new resolution was approved by the Board of County Commissioners that gave 
specific direction to the County Administration to consider innovative municipal projects as they 
prioritized the Building Better Communities bond funding.  This amendment was written by the 
former Town Manager and supported by County Commissioner Sally Heyman.  Finally, the risks 
inherent in the Virginia Key plant (where our sewage is treated) and the new force main under 
Government Cut have been documented in the Miami Herald.  
 
In a recent conversation with Doug Yoder, Assistant WASD Director who is handling the 
negotiations with EPA and DEP, it was learned that an environmental group has filed a lawsuit 
which questions the advisability of upgrading shoreline sewer plants that may go underwater if 
global warming raises sea level.  Therefore WASD is looking at the alternative of an inland plant 
at a higher elevation.  There is a long way to go on this issue.   
At the May 21, 2013 County Commission meeting, the County adopted a resolution regarding 
the Federal Consent Decree.  Commissioner Heyman again expressed support for recognition of 
funding efforts of municipal governments in upgrading sanitary facilities.  Bob McSweeney, PE 
of CGA represented the Town at this meeting.  However, since the County Commission action 
on the Consent Decree was a resolution, no public comment was received.  The following is a 
summary of the long established Town talking points on this issue which were to be presented: 
 
1. There should be recognition for communities that have made substantial investment to combat I&I.   

Rate increases should be discounted for communities which took initiative to reduce the I&I 
utilizing their own funds.  Surfside has expended $23 million on their utilities with the goal of 
reducing the I&I by 90%. 

2. Lift stations – Surfside has fixed its own, as has Miami Beach. Surfside’s sewage flows through 
upgraded lift stations with acceptable NAPOT reports.  Again, communities which showed 
initiative should not be punished by these rate increases.  

3. Support for Commissioner Heyman’s position:  “Any Building Better Communities water and/or 
sewer project in which a municipality has put forth an innovative financing plan shall not be 
adjusted as to priority in this analysis and in fact, shall be accelerated if possible. Further, the 
analysis requested of the Mayor shall include the implication for any recommended adjustments in 
dollars or timing in the Building Better Communities Bonds as to allocation of water and sewer 
permits for new or updated construction projects. Said analysis shall be done in a format the 
clearly demonstrates how the proposed adjustments impact the construction industry and job 
creation.” 

4. There should be recognition for building permits issuance and utilization of County capacity to 
offset County costs/ burden by developers.  This burden should not be placed solely on the 
wholesale customers such as the Town of Surfside. 

 
On May 29, 2013, the Town Manager discussed with Commissioner Heyman establishing a 
meeting to follow-up on sanitary sewer issues identified in this POL.  The Commission will be 
provided updates. 
 

Page 28



On July 11, 2013, Town representatives will meet with Miami Beach officials regarding the 
agreement with Miami Beach on sanitary sewer services they provide to the Town.  Information 
received from this meeting could impact the approach or information presented at a meeting with 
Miami-Dade Commissioner Heyman on sanitary sewer/consent decree issues.  Following this 
meeting with Miami Beach, Bob McSweeney, CGA Director of Engineering Construction, will 
prepare a report outlining the Town’s efforts in upgrades/improvements to its sanitary sewer 
system and issues in support of our talking points listed above which will serve as the basis for 
discussions with the County. 
 
 
5. Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage Project and Collins Avenue Force Main Project       
       
Current Status:  The following report on the Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage Project is a 
compilation of CGA and Staff input: 
 
The Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage Project commenced on August 15, 2011 in the southern sector of 
the Town (Phase I). The project involves water main/water service replacements, lining or 
replacement of the gravity sewer mains and sewer lateral replacements, rehabilitation of the sewer 
pump stations, and improvements to the storm water collection system including three (3) new storm 
drainage pump stations.  Phase I-III are now all substantially complete.  All of the sewer mains have 
been lined and the TV crews have now completed the post construction video which is being reviewed 
for approval by Town Staff and CGA Engineers.  The final lift of asphalt installation commenced 
February 25, 2013.  The paving subcontractor began in the south end of Town and has completed all 
available areas (Town is working with FDOT for the required restoration on FDOT roadways).  The 
permanent pavement marking and stripping is occurring as the asphalt has set a minimum of 21 
days.  The Contractor is now 98% complete with the punch list items for Phase I-III.  Sanitary pump 
stations are substantially complete and off of the bypass pumps.  The electricians have finalized the 
automated controls on the sanitary pump stations and final inspection and turn over will occur in 
June.  The drainage pump stations have passed all electrical inspections and FPL has provided 
power.  The contractor has mobilized and is performing the final modifications to the drainage pump 
stations.  The close-out of all pump stations will include full training of Town staff on operation and 
maintenance (O&M) and the contractor will provide O&M manuals. 
  
Both Surfside and the Village of Bal Harbour are currently utilizing the newly installed Collins 
Avenue force main with no operational issues. A meeting was held with Bal Harbour representatives 
on May 16, 2013 to attempt to resolve the issue of the design costs/fees for the project.  Staff is 
continuing its efforts to resolve this issue. 
  
Partial refinancing of the project has been completed to reduce the interest costs and provide funding 
for additional utility main replacements, and other costs within the original scope.  A comprehensive 
status report for the project was provided in the August 14, 2012 Commission Agenda package and 
authority was granted to complete the project within a total budget of $23.635 Million.  Retainage will 
continue to be held and will only be released after all work is completed including the punch list.   

Page 29



  
Funding Summary 

Funding Status:   Amount                      Amount Received             
FDEP Grant    $873,500  $0**      
FDEP Grant    $125,000  $12,500 ** 
FDEP Grant    $100,000  $100,000               
FDEP State Revolving Fund Loan*   $9,312,881                  $4,792,023 ***    
BBC Bond    $859,000  $787,335               
TOTAL    $11,270,381  $5,691,858 

  
*This loan has the potential of $2-$3 Million being forgiven by the State.   
*Partial Reimbursement #2 is in process for $3.188MM bringing total requested to $7.896MM 
**Reimbursements currently being processed by FDEP 
***The State of Florida has reduced the interest rate from 2.12% to 1.87% fixed over the life of the 
loan.  This will save approximately $200,000 of interest cost 
  
Sanitary Pump Station Outreach Meetings 
  
Meetings were held on May 20, 2013 with neighbors in the area of the 89th and 93rd Street Pump 
Stations.  Based on input received, the final restoration/landscaping plans have been modified to 
incorporate suggestions received – primarily landscaping suggestions to provide enhanced 
buffering.  Finally, this was an opportunity to express the Town’s appreciation to the residents 
for their incredible patience as this challenging project draws to conclusion. 
 
Project Closeout Meeting 
 
The community meeting on the closeout of the Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage Project was held on July 
8, 2013.  The meeting included: 
  
• Report by the consulting engineers on the scope of the project; benefits to be derived from 

the improvements including operational, financial and environmental; and what the project 
will mean long-term for the Town and residents. 
  

• Response to the inquiries and concerns expressed by residents regarding the functioning of 
the drainage system following the recent three major rainfalls which occurred prior to the 
new system pumps being operational and the contributing factor of the limited 
functioning  of the FDOT ‘s drainage system along Harding Avenue. 
  

• Opportunity for residents to identify any remedial action or restorations to property/right-of-
ways still to be accomplished as the Town closes out the project. 

 

Page 30



The CGA Projects Report in the July 16, 2013 Commission agenda packet contains additional 
information on the water/sewer/storm drainage project. 
  
  
6.  Seawall Project       
  
Current Status: The seawall design project was awarded to Calvin, Giordano & Associates with 
the commitment that the grant application cost would not be paid until a grant in the amount of 
not less than $250,000 was made available.   The design work is finalized.  As a result of 
Hurricane Sandy, the seawall at Carlyle and 88th Street is near collapse, endangering the Town’s 
$250,000 investment in the new storm water pump station.  A recommendation to declare the 
project an emergency was made to the Town Commission during the November 13, 2012 
meeting.  Based on authority granted at the November 13, 2012 Town Commission meeting, 
Staff applied for the emergency permit from Miami-Dade County and received budgetary quotes 
from Palm Beach Marine ($60,000), BK Marine ($88,000) and Shoreline Foundation, Inc. 
($92,000).  We have now received the FDEP approval, United States Army Corps of Engineers 
and the preliminary approval from Miami-Dade County, which was a prerequisite to obtain the 
Surfside Building Permit.  As soon as these are obtained we will be awarded our final Miami-
Dade County Permit.  After receiving comments from all permitting agencies the plans will be 
revised, if necessary, and resubmitted to the three qualified marine contractors listed above.  The 
updated bids received will be evaluated and the contractor which provides the best value for the 
Town will be awarded.  A Notice to Proceed will be issued immediately thereafter.  The 
remaining seawall repairs were submitted in the grant application package to FIND for grant 
reimbursement of up to 50% of the construction costs.  FIND presentations were made on June 
21, 2013 with final grant approvals being made in July, 2013 and funds become available 
October 1, 2013.  
  
The Town’s lobbyist, Fausto Gomez, successfully worked toward the inclusion of funding in the 
FY 13/14 State Budget for Surfside’s seawall repairs through the Legislature’s water project 
funding.  The required paperwork was prepared by CGA and submitted to the Governor (Office 
of Policy and Budget, Environmental Unit).  Unfortunately, Governor Rick Scott vetoed all 
funding for water projects.  More detailed information on seawall repairs is in the monthly report 
of CGA contained in the July 16, 2013 Commission agenda packet.  
  
 
7.  Federal Road Designation Removal in Single Family Neighborhood 
  
Current Status:  A meeting was held by CGA with the FDOT District Engineer on September 13, 
2012 to discuss the need to downgrade the single family streets to the lowest federal 
classification.  The 10 year FDOT update is underway and CGA has provided necessary 
information to support the change. The downgrade was recommended by FDOT and the 
designation has been changed by the Federal DOT in the most recent update. This is very 
important to ensure that our single family streets maintain their current residential status.  This is 

Page 31



also important should the Town Commission determine to close Byron Avenue at 88th Street in 
the future.   
  
Public Works Director Joseph Kroll has been tasked with other Town/FDOT issues including: 
  
•       Work with traffic engineer Jeff Maxwell to process the Town’s request to FDOT for signal 

timing changes at 96th and Collins and 96th and Harding per the traffic study; 
•       Ask FDOT to evaluate the re-establishment of the pedestrian crosswalk at 96th and Harding; 

[Note: a meeting was held with FDOT District Secretary Gus Pego on July 3, 2013 regarding 
permitting for the Harding Avenue Streetscape Project.  Initial discussions were held 
regarding the crosswalk; its history; and potential options.  Follow-up discussions will be 
held]. 

•        Investigate with Police Chief and Traffic Engineer the need and benefits of a pedestrian walk 
signal at 96th and Byron (for pedestrians crossing Byron).  Determine FDOT’s position and 
inquire about FDOT funding of improvement. 

 
 
8.  Beach Management     
 
Current Status:  Hurricane Sandy and high full moon tides and wind caused significant erosion on our 
beach.  Due to the storm, Surfside lost up to 75 feet of beach (with nearly 25 feet returning by natural 
drift of sand) and was one of the least damaged segments of beach countywide.  Staff has begun work 
on many fronts to ensure that various agencies with authority and funding initiate a renourishment 
program.  A meeting was held with Miami Dade County staff on December 20, 2012 and the County 
has accepted responsibility for coordinating the renourishment. Town Staff will be kept updated as 
Miami-Dade County moves forward with any renourishment project.  
 
Congresswoman Debbie Wasserman Shultz sponsored a Coastal Community Roundtable on April 4, 
2013.  Governmental representatives from Miami-Dade and Broward Counties heard presentations 
from U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in Jacksonville, Florida.  Of local interest, Corps representatives 
presented an overview of the sand renourishment project scheduled in Bal Harbour (Contract G: 
August, 2013 Award and start date at the conclusion of Sea Turtle Season).  After this project, 
compatible sand sources for renourishment will be depleted. 
 
The Corps will begin an outreach through the summer pertaining to their planned sand source study 
(Contract J: tentative date August, 2014).  The study will attempt to locate compatible sand (non-
County borrow area) for future projects. 
 
Brief discussions were held on the long delayed Bypass project at Port Everglades and the legal issues 
and challenges associated with the use of foreign sand (i.e. Bahamas) for domestic projects.  Also, the 
Town has been approached about possible coordination with Miami Beach on their dune restoration 
initiative. 
 

Page 32



A presentation on beach renourishment and the sand source study is scheduled for the August, 2013 
Commission meeting.  Initial contact has been made with various professionals in this field (Jackie 
Keiser, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; Brian Flynn, Special Projects Administrator, Miami-Dade 
County DERM (responsible for sand/beach renourishment); and Becky Hope, Port Everglades and 
Surfside resident.  They have all agreed to make themselves available to Town Staff to prepare a more 
in-depth presentation to the Commission.  Also, a meeting will be held on July 16, 2013 with Lee 
Gottlieb (dune renourishment project) and Mark Taynton (FDEP) on beach issues in preparation of the 
presentation at the August, 2013 Commission meeting.  The Town Public Works Director will take 
staff lead in addressing beach renourishment issues. 
 
 
9. Collins Avenue Sidewalk Utility Box Repairs: Commissioner Marta Olchyk 
 
Current Status: All of the trip hazards have been corrected with the exception of two (2) FPL boxes 
both located directly in front of the Surf Club on 90th and Collins Avenue. FPL has been contacted to 
make the necessary repairs and they will be correcting these trip hazards. FPL has been working on the 
utility box repairs and has hired a contractor to address the repairs subject to a FDOT permit. 
 
 
10.  Pedestrian Crosswalk at Harding Avenue and 96th Street 
 
Current Status:  This FDOT experiment in modifying pedestrian behavior by requiring a three 
light alternative has been an issue of concern. A meeting has been held with FDOT District 
Engineer Gus Pego and he has agreed to study going back to the original crosswalk.  This will 
slow eastbound traffic on 96th Street making a right turn to Harding Avenue southbound, 
however, that is a more desirable consequence than leaving the current dangerous unauthorized 
pedestrian movement.  A meeting was held with FDOT District Secretary Gus Pego on July 3, 
2013 regarding the history of the pedestrian crossing at 96th/Harding.  Follow-up meetings will 
be held to discuss the number of issues identified as the solution is more complex than just 
installing a crosswalk.  A full report will be prepared. 
 
11.  Town Hall Parking Lot(s) and Parking Solutions     

 
Current Status: At the April 9, 2013 Commission meeting, issues associated with Town Hall Parking 
Lot(s) and parking issues/solutions were discussed.  It was suggested that this project be added as a 
Point of Light. 
 
In order to understand the magnitude of improvements to the existing conditions, a design build 
proposal was requested from Lynx Construction Management for discussion purposes.  This proposal 
included design, surveying, permitting, construction, etc.  The cost estimate was based on a design to 
accommodate existing operations (Town Hall, Public Works and Police needs).  The design build 
proposal was $425,441. 
 

Page 33



It is recommended that no action be taken on this design build proposal.  The ultimate parking solution 
for this area needs to be part of the overall analysis going forward as the Town considers the proposed 
improvements to the Community Center (second floor option).  Also, there has been discussion on 
relocating all or a portion of the Public Works operation and/or vehicles. 
The FY 13/14 budget presented to the Commission will provide a proposal/funding to initiate the 
planning of Community Center improvements.  (Note:  voluntary proffers for the Town’s Parks and 
Recreation Capital Infrastructure Program that could be utilized for the Community Center total 
$700,000). 
 
Staff will determine appropriate maintenance actions to minimize the impacts of the dirt parking areas 
in the parking area south of Town Hall until permanent improvements are made. 
 
 
12.  Community Center Expansion: Second Floor Addition:  Vice Mayor Karukin 
 
Current Status: During the December 17, 2012 Parks and Recreation Committee meeting, the second 
floor of the Community Center was listed by the Committee as the top priority for the Parks and 
Recreation Infrastructure Plan.  The FY 13/14 proposed budget contains $100,000 funding from 
voluntary proffers to undertake conceptual planning and design of projects including the second story 
addition to the Community Center.  This funding is subject to the Commission approving a Five Year 
Capital Parks and Recreation Plan. 
 
 
13.  Biscaya Drainage Investigation  
  
Current Status:  Around the same time of the completion of the Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage 
Upgrade Project, Surfside experienced a two week period of high intensity short duration 
rainstorms in conjunction with spring high tides.  A result of the newly sealed sanitary sewer 
system which did not allow excess rainfall to flow into the sanitary sewer system, the flooding 
during these high tide-high intensity storms increased the duration of temporary flooding on 
Biscaya Island.   
  
A neighborhood meeting was held at Town Hall on June 5, 2013 to discuss the drainage issues 
on Biscaya Island.  The meeting began with a discussion regarding the current 
Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage Project and an explanation that the drainage portion of the project 
was being funded by FDEP in order to improve water quality entering Biscayne Bay, and was 
not solely a service/performance project.  It was also explained that the added work performed 
on Biscaya Island with regard to improving the existing drainage conditions was the correction 
of major deficiencies in curb and driveway elevations, improve the roadway profile, and service 
and clean the existing storm water catch basins.  Also, the drainage system (catch basins and 
culverts) was again inspected the week of June 5, 2013 to ensure that the system was not 
damaged during construction.  The residents provided input from and discussions regarding 
potential solutions including the construction of a drainage pump station, outfall upsizing and 

Page 34



other alternatives ensued.  At the conclusion of the meeting, Staff directed the Town/CGA to 
schedule meetings with the permitting agencies having jurisdiction to discuss possible 
modifications which would increase the level of drainage service to the island. 
  
The Town has held one meeting and one teleconference to date with Miami Dade RER (DERM) 
and SFWMD, respectively. The outcome of the Town’s meeting with the County resulted in the 
County agreeing to be receptive to SFWMD’s decision on waiving water quality treatment, and 
if so the County would most likely recommend a variance to the County’s requirement to 
provide water quality as well.  This is promising news should the Town decide to move forward 
with the design, permitting and construction required to upsize the current drainage outfall(s) on 
Biscaya Island. 
 
 
14.  Street Signs Replacement 
 
Current Status:  This item has been deferred until the final costs of the water/sewer/storm drainage 
project are known.  It does not appear that enough funds will be available for this project. A final 
report will be provided to the Commission upon closeout of the project. 
 
 
 
IV.  PLANNING, ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
1.  The Shul Project 
  
Current Status:  An application in sufficient form to start the Design Review Group (DRG) 
process was received and the first meeting was held on August 22, 2012.  A second Design 
Review Group meeting was held on February 13, 2013 and a third was held on March 28, 
2013.  A meeting took place with Stanley Price representing the Shul, former Town Manager 
Roger Carlton and Interim Town Attorney Linda Miller on March 1, 2013 to further refine the 
voluntary proffers including an alternative to a Payment In Lieu of Taxes (PILOT).  A DRG 
meeting is scheduled for July 18, 2013. 
 
 
2.  Tracking Development Orders 
 
Current Status: Project management tracking will be an integral part of obtaining software for project 
tracking, departmental interfacing/sharing of critical information (i.e. Code Department and Building 
Department) and overall management of special/development projects and asset management.  On 
May 30, 2013, a meeting was held to identify and discuss Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP – 
systems integration of internal and external management of information across the entire Town 
organization) requirements for upgrades for FY 13/14.  This will include a project tracking 
component.  A follow-up meeting was held with Staff on June 7, 2013.  Also, four project 

Page 35



management tracking schedules have been completed and the remaining tracking schedules will be 
completed prior to FY 13/14 budget adoption.  Thanks to Sarah Sinatra for undertaking this effort. 
 
 
3.  Massing and Zoning Discussion:  Vice Mayor Karukin 
 
Current Status:  At its May 15, 2013 meeting, the Town Commission directed the Town Manager to 
set up a Joint Workshop with the Planning and Zoning Board to discuss massing and zoning issues.  
The specific issues to be discussed include: 
 
• Property aggregation 
• Setbacks and stepbacks 
• Parking 
• Maximum frontage 
• Minimum floor area ratios 
• Efficiency units 
• Net vs. gross density 
 
Vice Mayor Karukin presented the above issues at the May 30, 2013 Planning and Zoning Board 
meeting.  Following the discussion, the Board and Vice Mayor agreed that initially the Board will 
address the massing and related issues at a future Planning and Zoning Board meeting. 
 
 
4.  Solar Panels and TV Antennas (Dishes) 
 
Current Status:  Solar panels are becoming less expensive to install and more cost effective as 
technology advances.  TV antennas (dishes) are proliferating where some buildings have as many as 
ten facing main streets causing visual clutter and excess wiring.  Both devices are a part of urban life, 
however, guidelines need to be developed.  Therefore this matter was sent to the Planning and Zoning 
/Design Review Board for discussion during their January 31, 2013 meeting.  This item is pending. 
 
 
V.  TOWN COMMISSION 
 
1.  Legislative Priorities 
 
Current Status: A meeting with the Town Manager and Fausto Gomez took place on January 8, 
2013 to discuss legislative priorities.  A subsequent meeting was held January 10, 2013 with 
State Representative Joe Gibbons and Mayor Dietch to discuss how the Rep. Gibbons may be 
helpful.  The Town Commission approved the legislative priorities during the January 15, 2013 
meeting with an amendment and Fausto Gomez is working the issues in Tallahassee.  The 
session began March 4, 2013 and we will remain in constant contact with Fausto Gomez.  Two 

Page 36



very significant items include a raid by FDOT on 50 percent of our on street meter revenues and 
changes to pension regulations which is both bad (lower the 7.5 percent earnings assumption) 
and good (allows us to use Section 185 money to supplement the basic pension).   
 
The Legislative Session ended on May 3, 2013.  Fausto Gomez will be scheduled to update the 
Commission at the July 16, 2013 Commission meeting on the session pertaining to new 
legislation affecting municipalities and the status of the Town’s legislative priorities adopted on 
January 15, 2013.  His written report was submitted to the Commission on June 4, 2013.  Also, 
Representative Joe Gibbons has been invited to the July 16, 2013 meeting to participate in the 
discussion of legislative priorities and the 2013 legislative session. 
 
2.  Charter Amendment Schedule 
(Action Item: July 16, 2013) 
  
Current Status:  The Town Commission during the February 12, 2013 meeting determined to initiate 
the Charter review process no later than August, 2013.  This means that the actual review must begin 
in November, 2013 thereby requiring that appointments be made, the process and schedule be set and 
a decision on legal advice be made in the period between August and November, 2013.  This is an 
action item on the July, 2013 Commission agenda. 
 
 
3.  Election Site 
 
Current Status:  On April 15, 2013, the Town Clerk notified the Miami-Dade Elections Department 
that the Town is considering changing the polling location permanently to the Community Center 
starting with the March 2014 election.  Miami-Dade responded that they would look into this issue 
after the May 14, 2013 County wide election.  The Miami Dade County Elections Department visited 
the Community Center on May 23, 2013.  Staff awaits their findings. 
 
 
4.  Agenda Backup Copies – Options:  Commissioner Marta Olchyk 
 
Current Status:  Town staff was asked to explore options to reduce the volume of paper that is 
included in the monthly Commission agenda packets.  The Town Clerk and Town Manager will 
follow-up by attempting to reduce the volume of paper that is included in future agenda packets.  
While it is difficult to identify specific issues/policy at this time, each individual opportunity where the 
volume of paper/information is reduced, it will be noted in the agenda package and the information not 
provided will be emailed to Commission members and a copy on file in the Town Clerk’s office.  
Town specific/critical items will always include all necessary information for the Commission’s 
consideration.  As this process is tested over the next several months, Commissioners can provide final 
direction whether this effort should continue. 
 
  

Page 37



5.  Commission/Planning and Zoning Board Joint Meetings 
 
Current Status:  Staff will identify several available dates for joint workshops between the 
Commission and Planning and Zoning Board pertaining to:  1). sight triangles/hedges and 2). zoning 
review including signs and awnings. 
 
 
VI.  TOWN DEPARTMENTS 
 
A.  Town Attorney 
 
1.  Options to Mitigate Inadequate Number of Parking Spaces at Multi-family Establishments along 
the Collins Avenue Corridor:  Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 
Current Status:  It has been determined by the Building Official that the Spiaggia Condominium 
is sixteen (16) usable spaces short from its required number of spaces due to the design of the 
parking facility which makes certain spaces unusable. The Building Official and the Town 
Attorney’s office are preparing an agreement with the Spiaggia Condominium Board to resolve 
the situation.  This will be a future Town Commission agenda item. 
 
 
B.  Building Department 
 
1.  FEMA Flood Insurance Status 
 
Current Status:  The General Contractor retained to perform the remedial work necessary to correct 
flood deficiencies at 1220 and 1236 Biscaya Drive, has begun the permitting process. Work is 
expected to begin the first week of April, 2013.  
 
Meetings with the engineering teams representing the owners of 9578 and 9415 Harding Avenue have 
continued. Technical Bulletins from FEMA reference material, outlining all the Dry Flood Proofing 
Certification requirements have been made available to both teams. The engineering package from 
9415 Harding Avenue is further along in the process. The initial submittal has already been reviewed 
by the Town’s Structural Engineer. Approval is contingent on the correction of review commentary 
and additional information that is required. The comments are currently being addressed by the 
owners’ engineer. The Building Official expects that both properties will have approved Dry Flood 
Proofing Certifications by the end of April, 2013. 
Meanwhile, progress continues with preparations for the Insurance Services Office (ISO) visit. The 
Building Official continues to work closely with Town staff to develop an outreach program to inform 
customers and home owners of the importance of proper flood plain management. The information is 
still on schedule to be posted on the Town’s website during the month of April, 2013. 
 

Page 38



On April 19, 2013, the Town of Surfside Building Official was part of a conference call with Prasad 
Inmula, the FEMA representative, and the team of engineers representing the CVS property located at 
9564 Harding Avenue. The topic of discussion was the requirements for the dry flood-proofing 
certification. The CVS engineering team is taking the information gathered from the conference call 
and evaluating possible solution scenarios. The Building Official pulled the original plans of the 
building found in the public record and made them available to the project engineers to assist them in 
their endeavors.  
 
The Building Department completed the coordination of remedial work required to bring the 
properties located at 1220 and 1236 Biscaya Drive, into compliance with the FEMA regulation. The 
work was permitted, inspected by Staff and approved. The properties were then re-surveyed and new 
Elevation Certificates were generated that reflected all the required corrections. These Elevation 
Certificates along with the one for the property located 1355 Biscaya Drive were forwarded to the 
FEMA office for review and compliance on April 26, 2013.  
 
On April 24, 2013 the Building Official, Linda Miller, Interim Town Attorney and legal consultant 
Ernie Abbott participated in a conference call with FEMA to discuss the remaining outstanding items 
in the Town’s Community Assistance Visit (CAV) Report. As part of the discussion, Prasad Inmula 
and Susan Wilson (FEMA), agreed to speak with their supervisor in regard to bringing closure to the 
CAV report and allowing the Town of Surfside to move forward with the next phase of the process to 
reinstate the Town in the CRS discount program. As a follow-up to this discussion, the Building 
Official spoke with Prasad on May 6, 2013. Prasad indicated that he had not yet completed his review 
of the Elevation Certificates sent to him on April 26, 2013, but he expected to do so before the end of 
the week ending May 10, 2013. 
 
On May 23, 2013, Prasad Inmula requested additional corrections/remedial work on three (3) 
properties and additional documentation on substantive compliance/certification of Dry Flood-
proofing on two (2) properties.  Once these are completed, FEMA indicates that the CAV issues are 
resolved.   
 
Eddie Rojas indicated that the ISO representative reported that it will take approximately 12-15 
months for ISO to complete its initial rating evaluation and Staff is in the process of working with ISO 
to better define the process and schedule for the Town and expedite where possible.  Regular updates 
will be provided. 
 
Preparation continues for the Insurance Services Office (ISO) visit. The Building Official continues to 
work closely with Town staff to develop an outreach program to inform customers and home owners 
of the importance of proper flood plain management. Recently, Darlene Martinat, Town’s building 
clerk, completed a FEMA training course in Maryland and is in pursuit of her Certified Floodplain 
Manager Certification. 
  

Page 39



 
July, 2013 update:  New Building Official Ross Prieto 

The previously reported three remaining residential properties located at 1220, 1236 and 1355 Biscaya 
had been submitted for resolution to the FEMA office were returned with further comments.  On May 
23, 2013, Prasad Inmula, CFM of FEMA Region IV commented on further remedial work required to 
bring these properties into compliance with the CAV.  Building Official Edward Rojas responded 
affirmatively to the comments on May 25, 2013 and began coordinating efforts thereafter and the new 
Building Official continued said efforts upon joining the Town of Surfside on May 29, 2013. 
 
The current status of the required remedial work for 1220 and 1236 Biscaya has been coordinated and 
is scheduled to be completed by mid-July.  The general contractor has been issued the building permits 
and is presently in receipt of the needed flood vents for these two addresses which had been on back 
order.  The property owners will be notified prior to commencing the work which will include 
providing the contractor with the elevations of the flood vents.   
 
The same general contractor has been retained for the remedial work pending at 1355 Biscaya.  The 
home owner has retained the services of a professional engineer to supply the schematic drawings for 
that structures flood vents and those should be ready to review by the mid-July.  The process for this 
property will be expedited to piggy back on the coordination efforts being established for the previous 
two properties.  Coordinating the compliance work and certification process simultaneously of these 
final three residential properties will result in completion of the work this month. 
 
As for the three pending commercial properties we can report that the property located at 9564 
Harding is not required to provide Dry Flood Proofing Certification as their improvements did not 
reach the threshold level of substantial improvement requiring it.  The property located at 9578 
Harding has not yet reached the milestone of occupancy required to trigger the requirement for Dry 
Flood Proofing Certification and has, therefore, been excluded from this requirement until the next 
certification cycle.  The property located 9415 Harding has fully complied by submitting their Dry 
Flood Proofing Certification which has been added to the file for re-submission to ISO. 
 
These aforementioned pending comments and their accompanying remedial work scopes should mark 
the close of all CAV requirements and will usher in a favorable environment for the ISO visit.  We 
continue to work on developing an outreach program to inform the residents of the importance of 
flood plain management and the great benefits in terms of hazard and damage mitigation to structures 
and property.  The outreach program will include access to property records, specifically surveys and 
elevation certificates along with any permit records relating to hazard mitigation work.  The outreach 
program will revolve around the imaging of records as this is essential to earning required CRS points 
so the benefit will be twofold.  By multi-tasking on the present imaging efforts of Town property 
records the residents will gain easy access to these files and they will provide multiple opportunities to 
earn needed CRS points.  The focus is and has always been to have all efforts planned and executed to 
ensure multiple benefits to the Town and its residents. 
 

Page 40



We have recently met with Earl King vice-president of CRS Max a consulting firm that specializes in 
maximizing the potential of a community’s application to the CRS program.  Their services revolve 
around identifying the existing conditions of each community and thereby providing programmatic 
solutions needed to attain the highest possible entry score into the CRS program.  In concluding our 
initial meeting with Mr. King we have agreed to review a proposal for his firm’s services. 
 
Darlene Martinat will be taking the exam for CFM certification test on July 12, 2013 and I will be 
taking the L-273 course and test the week of August 19 through August 23.  This specific course will 
be taught by Prasad Inmula the CFM for FEMA Region IV.  This is the contact person that I will be 
meeting with in Atlanta to review the final submission of documents in order to close out the CAV 
report and coordinate the final ISO visit to the Town of Surfside.  Once these final items are closed we 
will turn our full effort into the CRS program. 
 
 
2.  Imaging Town Documents 
 
Current Status:  The building department continues its daily scanning of current documents 
during the day and at the end of each day.  Document files are being reviewed and organized on 
an ongoing basis and some areas have been identified that will allow us to multi-task on current 
efforts.  All files are being reviewed and reorganized so that sub-files are created that will house 
the property’s elevation certificate and survey.  This will provide the Town the opportunity to 
earn points in the effort to achieve the best possible rating in its CRS submission.   
 
The process of imaging continues to be a priority and multiple outsourcing vendors have been 
contacted to provide an opinion on previously implemented solutions to this challenge.  It is our 
intention to become as informed as possible on a host of imaging options so that the most 
efficient and cost-effective solution is implemented that will finally address the imaging question 
but also taking advantage of all available CRS program points.  In conclusion, we are attempting 
to optimize imaging efforts to include records access to residents, design professionals, flood 
managing and reporting agencies ensuring the repeatable performance of the digital system that 
is chosen. 
 
 
3.  Forty Year Building Certification - Collins and Harding Avenues 
 
Current Status:  As of April 30, 2013, notices have continued to be sent to property Owners and/or 
Condominium Associations. In an effort to educate and inform the community, we have posted 
information regarding the Forty Year Certification regulations, procedures and required 
documentation on the Town website. A log is being kept that lists all the properties that have reached 
the forty year mark and have been sent notices. The log will allow the Building Department to track 
and monitor progress.  A total of fifty-seven buildings on Collins Avenue have been identified as 
required to obtain the Forty Year Certification, of those 4 are vacant, 1 has been demolished, 2 
buildings have completed the process and 6 have requested an extension.  The balance of forty-six are 

Page 41



still being researched and reviewed for compliance.  Building Official Ross Prieto will provide regular 
updates to the Commission.   
 
The new Building Official reports that the previously established program of 40 year building 
certification continues for Collins and Harding avenues.  Tracking logs are updated daily as are the 
prepared notification letter lists.  One slight change has been made to the second notice 
threshold.  First notice letters that are returned undeliverable for verification signatures or other such 
reasons are being re-mailed to provide the addressee a second opportunity to receive said letter.  In 
some cases this may alleviate the department from preparing a second notice document.  Second 
Notice letters also trigger an initial effort by the Code Department in which they begin the preparation 
of a Notice of Violation procedure should the subject property not respond.  
 
To date three more buildings have completed the process of certification and two more properties have 
requested extensions. The balance of the properties are being sent notice letters and the established 
program is being followed as implemented.   
 
 
C.  Code Compliance Department 
 
1.  Code Compliance Priorities Workshop 
 
Current Status:   A workshop was held on April 17, 2013 with the Mayor and Town 
Commission.  Staff provided a presentation that included historical information on the prior Ad-Hoc 
Code Enforcement Committee’s recommendations, and on commonly occurring or reported violations 
in the single-family, multi-family residential districts, and the business district.  Recommendations 
were provided on priorities in each district and discussion was held, including public comments.  Each 
elected official was provided a priority worksheet to be submitted to Staff in order to assist in 
establishing priority and policy direction for code enforcement.  Staff analyzed the information 
submitted by the Commission and provided a report with the June, 2013 Commission meeting agenda 
package.  Due to the number of items on the agenda and the anticipated length of the meeting to 
discuss code enforcement issues, this item is to be discussed at a separate meeting for this purpose.  
Staff is available to assist in scheduling the meeting. 
 
 
2.  Residential Home Based Businesses 
 
Current Status:  At the direction of the Mayor and Town Commission, enforcement of the Local 
Business Tax Receipt and Certificate of Use provisions was stayed for Home Based Businesses for 
FY12/13, until such time as code compliance priorities are established.  Staff follow-up report from 
the April 17, 2013 Code Compliance Workshop was provided to the Town Commission on June 11, 
2013, but deferred.  Additional discussion, recommendations and options will be provided at the next 
code compliance workshop, once scheduled. 
 

Page 42



 
3.  Tourist/Resort Tax Audit/Certificate of Use/Local Business Tax Receipt/Short Term Rentals  
 
Current Status:   
Resort Tax Audit II:    Only several businesses have not complied.  The Finance Director is working 
with the business to ensure compliance with the Auditors’ requests so that the audits could continue. 
The next Special Master hearing is tentatively scheduled for July 26, 2013. These businesses may go 
through the Code Compliance process in time for the next Special Master hearing.  
 
Certificate of Use (CU) /Local Business Tax Receipt (LBTR):  Only one business has yet to 
comply.  Staff continues to work with them for compliance.  Failure to respond will result in this 
businesses being brought before a Special Master on July 26, 2013.  This is the highest level of 
compliance ever achieved in Surfside history.  
 
Short Term Rentals:  Options/recommendations on short term rentals have been included in the Code 
Compliance Report that was provided, but deferred, at the Town Commission meeting of June 11, 
2013, as part of the follow-up to the April 17, 2013 Code Compliance Workshop. 
 
 
D.  Finance Department 
 
1.  Five Year Financial Plan:  Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 
Current Status:  The updating of the 2011 Five Year Financial Plan has been a priority project for 
staff.  Staff is completing a comprehensive update and a significant portion of the update work product 
is provided in the FY 13/14 Budget message including financial impact of approved development 
plans; resort tax revenues; building permit fees; fund balance and ad valorem revenue percentages 
(residential v. commercial). 
 
 
2.  Online Bill Pay: Vice Mayor Michael Karukin 
 
Current Status: The online payment by credit card of the water, sewer and storm water utility bill by 
residential and commercial customers was implemented as part of the water bill that was mailed in 
mid-June, 2013.   
 
 
E. Parks and Recreation 
 
1.  Beach Concessions 
 
Current Status:  The lease agreement with the State of Florida and Miami-Dade County was presented 
to the County Recreation and Cultural Affairs Committee on September 10, 2012 and moved forward 

Page 43



to the Board of County Commissioners on October 2, 2012. The lease application and documents were 
prepared by Miami-Dade County and submitted to the State for approval. On May 15, 2013 the 
County received correspondence from by the State regarding to the lease agreement. The State 
informed the County that Florida Statute 161.201 allows the County to police the beach and enter into 
a management agreement with the Town of Surfside. The Town Manager, Interim Town Attorney and 
the Parks and Recreation Director met with John Ripple, Beach Operations and Maintenance 
Supervisor and Kevin Kirwin, Assistant Director for Operations from Miami Dade County on May 20, 
2013 to move the process forward.  Currently the County attorney’s office is completing a review of 
the statute.  Following legal review, Town and County staff will work to prepare an agreement which 
would provide the Town with the legal authority to regulate beach concessions. The County is 
anticipating a September, 2013 start date to review a beach management agreement with the town.   In 
the interim, the County will be responsible for beach management issues.   
 
 
2.  Five Year Parks and Recreation Capital Plan 
 
Current Status: The Surf Club developer agreed to provide $400,000 to this project and the Chateau 
developer has agreed to add $200,000 for a total of $600,000. During the Planning and Zoning 
Hearing meeting on the Surf Club held September 25, 2012, the condition was modified to allow the 
contribution to be used for any Parks and Recreation capital project subject to a comprehensive Parks 
and Recreation infrastructure plan. With $600,000 in voluntary proffers to the Parks and Recreational 
capital budget, an initial meeting with the Parks and Recreation Committee to develop a Capital Plan 
was held on December 17, 2012.  During the December 17, 2012 Parks and Recreation Committee 
Meeting the Second Floor of the Community Center was listed by the Committee as the top priority 
for the Parks and Recreation Infrastructure Plan. The Parks and Recreation Committee has approved 
its recommended Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan.  The FY 13/14 proposed budget includes 
funding from voluntary proffers to begin the conceptual planning/design of the FY 13/14 projects 
listed in the Five Year Capital Plan.  Voluntary proffer payments will be received once the 
Commission approves a Five Year Parks and Recreation Capital Plan.   
 
 
3.  Pool Tot Lot Repairs - Community Center 
 
Current Status:  Funtraptions, the original contractor for the Community Center water 
playground, is no longer in business and not available for any warranty work or repairs. At the 
completion of the project, a 10 percent retainer fee was held back by the Town until full 
satisfaction was met with the water play structure. The retainer ($22,600) will be utilized to 
cover the cost of repairs of warranty items that need to be addressed. Naumann Nature Scapes, 
Inc. has been on site at various times since January 28, 2013 reviewing the water playground 
operations and reviewing the water playground pool blue prints. Naumann Nature Scapes, 
Inc.   has provided an itemized list of work to be completed on a priority level. This proposal was 
presented to the Town Commission during the May 15, 2013 meeting and a resolution was 
passed to have the work completed. Phase I of the work began on May 9, 2013 with the removal 

Page 44



of the Sand Dollar play feature for repairs. The Sand Dollar has been reinstalled and Phase II of 
the repairs has begun. The water playground continues to remain open.  Progress reports on the 
work being performed will be updated through the Points of Light. 
 
 
F.  Police Department 
 
1.  Emergency Operational Plan (EOP) 
 
Current Status:  Town Staff held an initial planning meeting to update the Town’s Emergency 
Operation Plan (EOP). The Department Heads were assigned to their areas of 
responsibility.  Department Heads are required to ensure that their personnel have the mandated 
National Incident Management System (NIMS) training. Emergency plan information was collected 
and provided to the consultant to add to the update. Below is a summary of the updates which were 
incorporated into the new EOP and that are in compliance with the National Incident Management 
System and consistent with the County’s Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan.  
 

• NIMS Compliance: The National Incident Management System based position assignments 
were not clearly identified nor were the associated training requirements.  The Plan develops 
position specific assignment tables which includes positions names and the associated federally 
required training.  

• Organizational Assignments: The Plan now incorporates a series of tables and charts which 
detail roles and responsibilities for both a minor disaster affecting the Town as well as a 
catastrophic level incident.  

• EOC Operating Procedures:  The Plan includes a detailed set of procedures which illustrate 
how the Emergency Operations Center will function once activated.  It incorporates room 
layout, technology requirements, activation protocols, operational guidance, and forms to use 
during the activation. 

• Miami-Dade County Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan Compliance: The Plan 
incorporated enhanced policies and tools from the County CEMP (2008) including updated 
County evacuation sites, Snapshot Rapid Impact Assessment process, Miami-Dade Alert Tool, 
Disaster Assistance Centers, refuges of last resort, and Web EOC.   

• Recovery Components: The Plan enhanced the Recovery Section to include damage 
assessment process details/forms/checklists, habitability assessment, disaster temporary 
housing, and the new County Post-Disaster Redevelopment Plan guidance. 

• Private Sector Role: The Plan also incorporated roles for the private sector and local 
procedures for coordination with organizations such as the Chambers of Commerce and 
Tourism. 

• Format Enhancement and Reorganization: The entire Plan was reformatted for easier viewing 
including placement of the hazard vulnerability analysis and the preparedness sections in the 
rear of the document.  

 

Page 45



Town Staff was briefed on the updated Plan on May 3, 2013. The updated Plan was approved by the 
Town Commission at the May 15, 2013 meeting. 
 
On May 29, 2013, Chief Allen, Lt. Alberto and Town Manager attended a Miami-Dade County 
District 4 Regional Hurricane Strategy meeting attended by officials from municipalities in County 
Commission District 4.  Thanks to Commissioner Heyman for scheduling this worthwhile meeting. 
 
Finally, an Eye on Surfside meeting was held June 19, 2013 with focus on hurricane preparedness. 
The 2013 Guide to Hurricane Readiness was posted on the website and distributed to the 
condominiums. 
 
A regional disaster mock exercise was conducted in North Miami on June 27, 2013. Representatives 
from the Surfside Police and Public Work Departments attended. 
 
 
G.  Public Works 
 
1. Sidewalk Staining to Match Colors 
 
Current Status: The project is almost complete with the only item being touch-up work on three 
driveway entrances along Collins Avenue. The three that remain are located at north end of town 
between 95th and 96th  on Collins Avenue on both sides. The contractor is scheduled to complete the 
work during the week of July 8, 2013.  Due to heavy traffic on Collins Avenue, the Surfside Police 
will assist with the road closure during the work. The Public Works Department will undertake 
maintenance work and other Town sidewalks on an as needed basis. 
 
 

Page 46



Page 47

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3D



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE 

PROJECTS PROGRESS REPORT 
CALVIN, GIORDANO & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

July, 2013 
 

1. Planning and Community Development – Planning and Community Development – In 
August 2012, the Shul submitted a site plan application for an expansion. Staff met with the 
applicant to discuss the review comments and the applicant resubmitted the plans on January 
25, 2013.  Staff held Development Review Group meetings on February 13, 2013 and March 
28, 2013. The applicant submitted a fifth revision on June 21st.   Once all of the outstanding 
comments are addressed, a Development Impact Committee meeting will be scheduled. 
Planning Staff has prepared a spreadsheet for each development project to continually track 
the conditions of approval. This spreadsheet identifies the department responsible for the 
item and confirmation of completion. Staff continues to answer approximately 80 zoning 
questions monthly and reviews permit applications.   

 

2. Information Technology & TV Broadcasts - The mail server has been up and running 
without interruption for 351 days.  The last downtime was for routine maintenance and 
occurred on July 11, 2012.  IT is working with Municode and SunGard on setting up utility 
billing online, which is now live on the website. IT has configured the Data Transfer portion 
for the Finance Department. IT is gathering updated quotes and proposals for upgrades to the 
broadcast equipment, cable television feed, Scala display software, and live video streaming. 
Triad Security has installed panic buttons in the chamber room to alert dispatch of emergency 
situations. IT has provided quotes for surveillance cameras for the Police Department to 
place around the town.  The police department has also requested to order and install two 
new video cameras at the Community Center, per the Chief’s request. IT has completed the 
upgrade to all police laptops with new Verizon 4G cards to improve speed and VPN 
reliability. IT installed a new gigabit network switch for the servers to speed up the daily 
backups. IT is coordinating with SunGard to order a replacement check printer. The IT staff 
continues to receive approximately 300 support requests monthly via phone and email.  

 

3. Public Utilities / Engineering – The Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage Project commenced on 
August 15, 2011 in the southern sector of the Town (Phase I). The project involves water 
main/water service replacements, lining or replacement of the gravity sewer mains and sewer 
lateral replacements, rehabilitation of the sewer pump stations, and improvements to the 
stormwater collection system including three (3) new storm drainage pump stations.  Phase I-
III are now all substantially complete.  All of the sewer mains have been lined and the TV 
crews have now completed the post construction video which is being reviewed for approval 
by Town Staff and CGA Engineers.  The final lift of asphalt installation commenced 
February 25, 2013.  The paving subcontractor began in the south end of Town and has 
completed all available areas (Town is working with FDOT for the required restoration on 
FDOT roadways).  The permanent pavement marking and stripping is occurring as the 

Page 52

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3E



asphalt has set a minimum of 21 days.  The Contractor has completed all punch list items 
within private property and is now finalizing the pump station and roadway punch list.  
Sanitary pump stations are substantially complete and off of the bypass pumps.  The 
electricians have finalized the automated controls on the sanitary pump stations and have 
requested a startup/inspection.  The drainage pump stations have passed all electrical 
inspections and FPL has provided power.  The contractor has mobilized and completed the 
work at the 94th St pump station and is currently completing the remaining two stations.  The 
close-out of all pump stations will include full training of Town staff on operation and 
maintenance (O&M) and the contractor will provide O&M manuals.  A project close out 
meeting was held on July 8, 2013 at 7:00pm. 

 

Both Surfside and the Village of Bal Harbour are currently utilizing the newly installed 
Collins Avenue force main with no operational issues. CGA continues to assist the Town 
manager in negotiating with Bal Harbour a resolution of the design costs for the force main 
or arbitrations will begin.  

 

Partial refinancing of the project has been completed to reduce the interest costs and provide 
funding for additional utility main replacements, and other costs within the original scope.  A 
comprehensive status report for the project was provided in the August 14, 2012 Commission 
Agenda package and authority was granted to complete the project within a total budget of 
$23.635 Million.  Retainage will continue to be held and will only be released after all work 
is completed including the punch list.   

 
Funding Summary –                                                                                            

Funding Status:                                   Amount                   Amount Received             
FDEP Grant                                                 $873,500                              $0      **      

FDEP Grant                                                 $125,000                              $12,500 ** 

FDEP Grant                                                 $100,000                              $100,000               

FDEP State Revolving Fund Loan*     $9,312,881                          $4,792,023 ***           

BBC Bond                                                   $859,000                              $787,335               

TOTAL                                                       $11,270,381                         $5,691,858 
 

*This loan has the potential of $2-$3 Million being forgiven by the State.   

*Partial Reimbursement #2 is in process for $3.188MM bringing total requested to       
$7.896MM 

**Reimbursements currently being processed by FDEP 

***The State of Florida has reduced the interest rate from 2.12% to 1.87% fixed over 
the life of the loan.  This will save approximately $200,000 of interest cost 

Page 53



4. Neighborhood Improvements – CGA Staff completed the traffic computer modeling of the 
Town’s roadway system as an element of the Town-wide traffic calming study.  The initial 
traffic counts to complete the traffic study occurred in September, 2012.  A number of the 
counts were finalized in late October due to construction activities.  These counts are 
incorporated in the Draft Traffic Study Report that was discussed at the April 9, 2013 
meeting.  As authorized by the Town Commission, staff held public meetings on June 25, 
2013 to discuss and receive resident input.  The Town Manager will also utilize this study 
during his discussions with the Village of Bal Harbour regarding the potential mall 
expansion, and discussions with Miami-Dade County regarding additional traffic calming 
devices and street beautification projects. 

 

5. Emergency Management - CGA finalized all revisions to the Town’s Emergency 
Operations Plan (EOP) and submitted it on Friday, March 29, 2013.  Onsite training occurred 
on Friday May 3, 2013.  This project is completed. 

 

6. Emergency Seawall Repair at 88th & Carlyle - Miami Dade County RER (Formerly 
DERM) has completed the Biological Opinion (BO).  The results of the BO were submitted 
to the Town and CGA has incorporated the BO permit requirements into our final plans.  The 
final plans have been submitted for final permits.  The US Army Corps of Engineers 
(USACE) permit was obtained in late February 2013 and the FDEP permit was obtained in 
April 2013.  The South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) and Miami Dade 
County RER permits are ready to be issued but were waiting on final structural approval 
from the Town, which was received June 27, 2013.  The SFWMD and RER final permits are 
expected to be completed in July 2013. 

 

7. Town-Owned Seawall Repair - The 90% plans were submitted to the Florida Inland 
Navigation District (FIND) Commissioner Spencer Crowley, III, who represents Miami Dade 
County on the FIND Board.  The project received a favorable response from the 
Commissioner and we submitted our project for funding.  CGA presented the project to 
FIND on June 21, 2013.  FIND will publish the final funding decisions in July 2013.  If 
awarded, funding becomes available October 1, 2013.   The environmental survey for benthic 
resources was performed in May 2013, the plans have been finalized to reflect the findings.  
Simultaneously, while we are applying for the FIND funding we will be working on 
obtaining the required USACE, FDEP, Town and Miami Dade County RER permits. 

 

Page 54



Page 55

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3F



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3G



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3H



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4A1



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4B1



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4B2

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4B3



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4B4



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4B5



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4B6



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113

snovoa
Typewritten Text
5A



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text
5B



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122

snovoa
Typewritten Text
5C



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127

snovoa
Typewritten Text
5D



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133

snovoa
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 134

snovoa
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "B"



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138

snovoa
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142

snovoa
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "B"



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9A



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



 

 

Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

May 15, 2013 
 7 p.m.  

 

 

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 

Title:  “Construction Worker Parking Program” 

Objective:  To provide: as conveniently located as possible, inexpensive, safe and secure, parking 
for construction workers.  Require ‘developer’ to provide transportation to and from parking.  
To determine if parking lot(s) are available during the week,  for either the Town or developer to 
rent.  Possibly the St. Joseph’s Church, lots adjacent to the Town located on Miami Beach that 
are mostly unused during the week, and the last choice of somewhere in Haulover Park.    

Consideration:  It is the ‘job’ of the Town Commission to protect resident’s safety, health and 
well being – this agenda item pursues this goal.  We have just learned that construction of the 
‘hotel project’ on 92nd street will shortly commence.  We know that the Surf Club will also start 
at sometime in the near future… and, other projects are inevitable. 

Action: I am asking the Commission to give direction to the Town Manager and Town Attorney 
to prepare a plan to accomplish the above directive with the help and input of SPD.  Determine 
cost of ‘off duty’ SPD officers to provide security, parking enforcement, etc.  Determine, if to be 
paid for out of building department ‘permit fees, developer agreements in place, etc.? 

Additional Info/Note:  Importance: High  
Contact Comm. Sally Hayman’s office for help if needed. 
 

Approximate Cost: Minimal/None to ascertain information stated above under “Action.” 

Thank you for your consideration; 

Respectfully,   

Joe Graubart, Commissioner 

Page 161

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9B



Agenda Item
 
Agenda Dat
 
From: 
 
To: 
 
Subject: 
 
 
During the J
Clerk to coll
was appoint
 
As of today,
Commission
 
It is my und

m #      9C 

te:  July 1

Sand

Mayo

Inter

June 11, 201
lect all evalu
ted by majo

, Wednesday
ner Graubart

erstanding t

Comm

16, 2013 

dra Novoa, C

or, Vice May

rim Town At

13, Regular T
uations.  The
rity vote to 

y, July 10, 20
t, Commissio

that Commis

Town o
mission

CMC, Town C

yor and Mem

ttorney Eval

Town Comm
e evaluations
receive them

013, I have r
oner Kligma

ssioner Kligm

 

of Surf
 Comm

 

Clerk  

mbers of the

uations

mission Meet
s were to be
m and provid

received eva
n and Comm

man will pres

 

fside 
munica

e Town Com

 

ting, the Com
e provided to
de feedback

aluations fro
missioner Olc

sent this ite

tion 

mmission 

mmission dir
o Commissio
k to the Com

m Mayor Di
chyk (see att

m. 

rected the To
oner Kligman
mission Me

etch, 
tachments).

own 
n who 
mbers.   

 

Page 162

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9D

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 176



Page 177



 

 

Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

July 16, 2013 
 7 p.m.  

 

Town Commission Communication - MEMORANDUM 

 

 

I’d like to thank our new Town Manager, Michael Crotty and Finance Director 
Donald Nelson for having averted a real financial fiasco by presenting a 
comprehensive and independently prepared HPF Associates, Inc. “cost estimate” 
previously unknown to the Town of Surfside Commission.  Under the previous 
Town Manager we were told the decision to convert the Town of Surfside’s 
overhead utilities to underground was a “NO BRAINER” - in spite of that; last 
month’s June Commission meeting Staff Recommendation stated: “It is 
recommended that the Town Commission take no action on the proposed 
resolution as the cost of undergrounding exceeds the Town’s current financial 
ability to fund a project of this scope and cost.”   Here’s basically why: AT&T, 
Broadband Cable and “other cost” exploded from three million dollars to 
$8,586,829 an almost three fold increase in cost.  The Total Loan Amount for this 
project is $16,395,710 with an annual principal and interest debt service of 
$1,180,000 over a TWENTY YEAR period.  Three project cost estimates furnished 
the Commission previously range from a low of $7,466,523 in February 2013 to a 
high of $8,579,226 January; with one going back to September 2012 for 
$8,200,304. (www.townofsurfsidefl.gov June Commission packet – Tab 5B)  
Simply stated, the project has come close to doubling in cost before the first 
shovel has even hit the ground. 

Page 178

http://www.townofsurfsidefl.gov/
snovoa
Typewritten Text
9E

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Had the Town Commission been provided the HPF Associates, Inc. “Cost 
Estimate,” which accurately estimated costs for both Golden Beach and two of 
Miami Beach’s upscale islands; I believe the stress, strain and divisiveness this 
‘debate’ created for Residents, Commissioners, and Staff could have been 
avoided.  

Fortunately,  after reviewing the “cost estimate” the Commission agreed with the 
staff’s recommendation on this “No Brainer” project and voted to “take no 
action” at this time.  

Respectfully, Joe Graubart, Commissioner  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 179



 

Title: Resilient Communities for America Agreement 

Submitted By: Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

Objective: That each member of the Surfside Town Commission considers signing the enclosed 
Resilient Communities for America Agreement. 

Consideration: Resilient Communities for America is a national campaign that champions the leadership 
of local elected officials who are building more resilient communities. The centerpiece of 
the campaign is the Resilient Communities for America Agreement, a document that local 
elected officials can sign to formalize their commitment and showcase their leadership.  
Specifically, the Resilient Communities for America Agreement expresses an intention to 
raise awareness within our communities and to develop and implement strategies to 
address extreme weather, energy, and economic challenges facing our community, region 
and country. The campaign provides critical resources to inspire greater local leadership 
on mitigation, adaptation, and resilience strategies and raise community awareness of the 
challenges that we face.  Please visit http://www.resilientamerica.org/ to learn more 
about Resilient Communities for America and the Resilient Communities for America 
Agreement. 

Page 180

http://www.resilientamerica.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/06/Resilient_Communities_Agreement_Letter.pdf
http://www.resilientamerica.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/06/Resilient_Communities_Agreement_Letter.pdf
http://www.resilientamerica.org/
http://www.resilientamerica.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/06/Resilient_Communities_Agreement_Letter.pdf
http://www.resilientamerica.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/06/Resilient_Communities_Agreement_Letter.pdf
snovoa
Typewritten Text
9F



Resilient Communities for America Agreement
We, the mayors and local leaders of America, will lead the 
creation of more resilient cities, towns, and counties, built to 
overcome our nation’s EXTREME WEATHER, ENERGY, and 
ECONOMIC challenges.

A CALL TO ACTION
Communities across the country are on the front lines of  three related challenges: record-breaking extreme weather fueled 
by climate change, unreliable and costly energy, and ongoing economic uncertainty. As the pace of  change quickens, city 
and county governments must work to make communities more “resilient”: able to bounce back from disruptions in a 
sustainable way and maintain a good quality of  life for all. As local elected officials:

1. We urge state and federal leaders to support our local resilience initiatives and to take meaningful steps to 
build resilience and security throughout the nation.   

2. We commit to building community resilience through our own local actions, such as the paths to resilience 
described below.  

3. We commit to sharing our solutions, success stories, and annual progress with other local governments 
through the Resilient Communities for America online platform.

PATHS TO RESILIENCE
CLIMATE PREPAREDNESS
• Evaluating local vulnerabilities to extreme weather and a changing climate, from heat waves and air pollution to 

droughts and floods.
• Adopting and implementing preparedness policies that protect vulnerable populations and natural resources from 

extreme weather and other climate impacts.
• Reducing the community’s carbon footprint to help reverse climate change and avoid the costs of  adapting to more 

severe climate impacts.

ENERGY SECURITY
• Transitioning to a renewable energy future to achieve greater energy independence, protect communities from price spikes, 

and ensure more reliable power during heat waves and other disruptions.
• Implementing energy efficiency programs that help residents, businesses, and municipal government save money and 

energy, lower carbon emissions, and reduce demand on the grid during severe weather events.

 
INFRASTRUCTURE RENEWAL
• Investing in upgrades to community facilities to safely serve the needs of  changing communities decades into the future.  
• Creating new models to finance improvements and manage risks to community assets through engagement with the 

private sector.
• Harnessing innovations in information technology and green infrastructure to optimize performance and reduce costs 

through more efficient operation. 

ECONOMIC PROSPERITY
• Retaining and attracting investment by safeguarding businesses from extreme weather and ensuring reliable access to energy, 

water, and other key resources.
• Supporting the private sector in creating more diversified local economies that are more resilient to economic downturn, 

through job creation in sectors such as clean energy, advanced manufacturing, and local agriculture.  

Page 181

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Resilient Communities for America Agreement

For Local Elected Official Signatories: 

o As a local elected official, I support the Resilient Communities for America Agreement.

Date: ____________ 

Elected Official Name & Title: _____________________________________________________________________

Signature: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Jurisdiction: ____________________________________________________________________________________

Address: ______________________________________________________________________________________ 

City: _________________________________ State: _____________ ZIP: __________________________________

Elected Official’s E-mail: __________________________________________________________________________

Staff  Contact Name & Title: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Staff  Phone: __________________________________________Staff  E-mail:_______________________________ 

o As an advocate for strong communities, I will assist the campaign in recruiting another five local elected officials 
        as signatories. Please contact me at the e-mail address above.

For Other Government & Civic Leader Endorsers:   
(Current and former governors, Congressional leaders, former local elected officials, federal agency leaders, military leaders, etc.) 

o As a civic leader, I endorse the Resilient Communities for America Agreement.

Date: ____________ 

Name & Title: __________________________________________________________________________________

Signature: ______________________________________________________________________________________  

Organization: ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone: ____________________________________________E-mail:_______________________________________  

Please return completed form at your earliest convenience to:
ICLEI USA
Attn: Resilient Communities for America Agreement
414 13th St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA 94612

By Fax: (510) 844-0698
By E-mail: iclei-usa@iclei.org

Or visit www.resilientamerica.org

www.resilientamerica.org

Page 182

ddietch
Typewritten Text

ddietch
Typewritten Text

ddietch
Typewritten Text
 x

ddietch
Typewritten Text
July 2, 2013

ddietch
Typewritten Text
Daniel Dietch, Mayor

ddietch
Typewritten Text
Town of Surfside

ddietch
Typewritten Text
9293 Harding Avenue

ddietch
Typewritten Text
Surfside

ddietch
Typewritten Text
FL

ddietch
Typewritten Text
33154

ddietch
Typewritten Text
ddietch@townofsurfsidefl.gov

ddietch
Typewritten Text
 x


	3A - Minutes
	3B - Budget to Actual
	3C - POL
	3D - Town Attorney Report
	3E - Projects Progress Report
	3F - Committee Reports
	3G - Expenditure of Forfeiture Funds for the Purchase of Special Equipment
	3H - Biscayne Restoration Resolution
	4A1 - Red Light Camera
	4B1 - DROP
	4B2 - P&Z membership requirements
	4B3 - Hardpack Easement
	4B4 - Trellises
	4B5 Carport Standards
	4B6 - Metal Roofs
	5A - Second Amendment to ATS, Inc Agreement
	5B -  ATS - Code Enforcement 
	5C - Proposed Millage Rate
	5D - Abbott and 94th Street Parking Lots
	9A - Charter Review Board
	9B - Construction Worker Parking Program
	9C - Interim Town Attorney
	9D - Status of Code Compliance Efforts
	9E - Communication Re: Undergrounding 
	9F - Resilient Communities for America 



